
 

    

 

Harrow Business Consultative Panel  

AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Monday 20 January 2014 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 
 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chairman: 

 

Councillor Kam Chana  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Susan Hall 
 

Keith Ferry 
Ajay Maru 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Yogesh Teli 
2. John Nickolay 
 

1. Bill Phillips 
2. Sasi Suresh 
 

  
 

 
 
 

    

    

Contact:  Vishal Seegoolam, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1883    E-mail:  vishal.seegoolam@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Harrow Business Consultative Panel - 20 January 2014 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Panel; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN    
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the remainder of the Municipal Year 2013/14. 

 
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2013 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 
 To receive any public questions received in accordance with Executive Procedure 

Rule 50 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 
Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a 
time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, Wednesday 15 
January 2014.  Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk    

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

6. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 48 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 



 

Harrow Business Consultative Panel - 20 January 2014 

7. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 49 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

8. INFORMATION REPORT - DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15,  MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY  2014/15 TO 2016/17 AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
2014/15 TO 2017/18   (Pages 9 - 106) 

 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
9. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 5 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ���������	
��		�
��	�����
��������������������������� ������

�
�
�

���������	
��		�


��	�����
����������

�
����	�

�

����������������
�
�
��������	� �� 
����
�������
���������
� � �
�
����


��	� �� ����
�����

��  �	���������
�

�� !"���#����
�

�� $�����	�#��%���&��	����
�
�

���� ��
�
�����
�
'���
��
���������(�#��)�
��$
����(*�+����,�����-�	��.��(���
���%����+�

�������� ��(�#�	� )�
/�%���� '���&�*� �� %�	
��		� ������ 
�� ������*� ��� ����
����
�01�
�

���� ��������������������������������
�
���� !�"	��'��������������������������2�	�����#��%��	�
�������(����1�
�

�#�� "��
�����
���
$�%����������
�
!0��(�� 3���� �� 4� 3�+�����
��� 2�&���� 4� $��+�� 2������� ��(0��� ��(�#�(
���
'�����
����
��� �����0��������5�������6��7�
�

����
����	� ��
��� �����*�  �	��� ����� ��(� !"��� #���� (������(� ����&����
����

�����	�	�
�����������������%�	
��		������	�
��������1��'��������(�����
��
��
�����������
�	������
���������(
	��		�(���(�����(��&��1�
�

�&�� �''
��������
$�!���(�����������
�
���� !�"	��'���&&�
���
����
�����!"���#�����	�8
���
��
������+�����������
+�����������
�(����+���������9���#��
�
&���:���1�

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 8

1



�

��;��� � ���������	
��		�
��	�����
���������������������������

�
)*�� ����������

�
���� !�"	� �'���������
����	��+� ��������
�0����(�������������������*�%��
��<����	����(���(�	
0��(��	����������������(1�
�

)��� +��
���,�����
��-�+�����
�������"�'�����
�����
�
���� !�"	� � '�� ����� ����� ��� &�%�
�� =��	�
��	� ����� &��*� ��� &��
�
��	� ���
(�&����
��	�����
��(������
	�����
�01�
�

���� !�"�%.������
�

))�� %/0����.%�/� ��+��.� (� "��$�� �������� 1��2��� ���� ������� .����
0�������
�������2��)*�3(�4��
�)*��(�����
�
'�������������
��(�����&����	���
�0���������
����
�>	�&��&�	��	�+�������%�(0���
��(�#�(
���'�����
����
��� �����0��������5�������6��7���(���	������$��+��

�&
�������0������������5�������6��7�+������	�����
��1�
�
'��� 
��&������ $
������� �+� 2�	�����	� ���(����(� �� &��	�����
��� ��
���
���	
	��(��+�	������������	1�
�
2���������(0���
�
'���
��&������$
��������+�2�	�����	���&����(�����?�
�

•� ���� 
��&�����	
���  &��(
�0� 2��
��� 
�� ����� ��(� %���� ���� ��	��
�������0
�0�+��(
�0�	����������
��(���(�	@�

�

•� ����
����
�� ��(� %���� ��=�
��(� �����<�� �� ��A� ���� 
�� 
�	� ���������%���
%�(0��������5�����	@�

�

•� 	������� ����� ����	� �+� ��(���
��	� ��� ���� 
����
�>	� %�(0��� �����
�B&����(@�

�

•� ���� 
����
�� ����� �B&��
���
�0� 0������ &��		���	� 
����(
�0�
(���0��&�
������0�	�
�&���
�0����	��
����������(�	������&����	@�

�

•� ������ ��	� �� �
	���
������ ���� ������ �+� 0����� +��(
�0� &���
(�(� ��� ����

����
�@�

�

•� ��(��� +��(�(� 	���
��	� ��(� ��������� � %���� ����	+����(� ��� ���� 
����
��

����(
�0� 
����
�� '�B�  �&&���� ��(�  ��
��� ���(	*� �((
�0� +�������
&��		�����������
����
�>	�%�(0��@�

�

•� ����&��&�	�(�%�(0�����(�%����0�
(�(�%�� ����
��&��������
��
�
�	1� � 3��
�((
�
��� ��� ��
	� ���� %�(0��� ��+�����(� C� <��� &�
��
&��	� ��
��� 
����(�(�
����
��
�0� ��� ��<�� 	��
�0	� 
�� ���� �
�
�� ������� ��(� ��	��
�0� ����
	���
��	���	
(���	�����(��%���������&�������(�+����(��	�
�����	@�

�

2



�

���������	
��		�
��	�����
��������������������������� �������

•� �	� 
������������	���(*�����
����
����(���+��(
�0�0�&��+�DC1���
��
���+���
������5� ��(� D�1�� �
��
��� +��� ���5��C1� � �������� +��� ���� +�����
�0�
������	��+������
	*�����+��(
�0�0�&�
�����	�(�	
0�
+
������@�

�

•� ���� (��+�� ��(0��� ��=�
������� +��� ������5� ��	� �&&��B
�������
D�����
��
��1��'�
	�+
0�������<�
������������%�(0���&��		���	*������
����
����0�	���(����
�����	��
��
����
��'�B@�

�

•� 	���� �+� ���� %�(0��� &��		���	� 
����(�(� �� ��(���
��� 
�� E����������
E����	� %�� D�1C� �
��
��*� �� ����
�0����� �+� D�� �
��
��� ��(� ��� �B����
D���
��
������(�����
������
�
&���(�������		��		@�

�

•� 	�����+�����%�(0�����(���
��	�
����(�(�����(���
���
��!(���	�
��������
#���0������ %�� D�1��
��
��� ��(� �� ��(���
��� �	� &���� �+� ���� �23 #�
&��"����%��D�1C��
��
��@�

�

•� ���� 
�&���	� +��� %�	
��		�	� ��
	
�0� +���� ���� %�(0��� 
����(�(� ���
�	&
���
��� +���(
	������(����	������&��<
�0���(��� �
�<�(��������
��(�
��
��� ��	�� �++���(� &�����
��	� �
��� ������ ���(��	1� � '��� 
�&���	� ��	��

����(�(�+���������������������0������
��*�
���	������
���
0����	���(��
����
���(���&��������&��0�����	1�

�
$��
�0� ����(
	��		
������ ��
	� 
���*�#��%��	��+� �������������%�����(���� ����
&��&�	��� ��� 
����(���� �����������
��(1� � '���
��
�� �B&��
��(� ����� +�����
�0�
���	�����
��*� �� ���0�� ���%��� �+� %�	
��		�	� 
�� ���� %����0�� ��(� �B&��		�(�
���
�� �������� ��� ���=���� ���	������ &��<
�0� ��0
��	� 
�� ���� 
����
�1� � '��	��
%�	
��		�	� ��(� �B&��		�(� ����� �� +�
���� 	�	���� ��	� ��=�
��(� ��(� �����
	��&&��	�	����(�%���%������&��<�+������
�
�
���&��
�(��+��C�����
����	��
������
����0�1��'������(�����(���	���++���&�����
��	�+���	��&&��	�+�������(��	1��'���
�������
��(�����(��&�������	
�0�	��������(���������0����(�&��<
�0������	�
�
��
�� ����%����0������(����(� ���%���&0��(�(1� �'����������
��(�����(�%��
	��(� ��(�&�
��(�%�������DC� ��� D��1� �!�
��(� ����(� ��	�� +��� �� ����	1� � 3����	�
�B&����(��������������*������	
(���	�����(�
�
�
�����	
0���&�����%��
�����������

��(1� �'���.��(��������0���+��
��
�0(�����(�	����		+����� 
�&�������(� ��
	�
	��������(�����
����
�>	���(����+�(��
���������(�%��%�	�(�������
����(��1��3��
��	��	�
����(����������&���
	
����+�+�������	������&��<
�0�+�������
����	�����(�
�����������&&��B
�������D���*�������DC��*��������(�%����	��
�����������	���
��	���*� ������0�� #��%��	� %��
���(� ���� +
0���� �+� D���*���� ��� %�� �����
��������1� � $�	&
��� ��
	*� 
�� ��	� %��
���(� ����� ���� &��&�	��� ����(� &���
(��
�������	�%���+
�	�+����������%�	
��		�	���(���	
(���	1�
�
�!�#��%����+������������B&��		�(��������������������&��&�	�(�	�����1�� ���
�B&��		�(� ����� 
�� �
0����+� ����(
++
����� +
����
�����
����*� ���� 
�&��������
����+�
��
	�	��������	�
����(�
	�(1�� ����B&��		�(���������������
��(�����(�����%��
+��� ����%���+
���+������������ ��	
(���	*�(�&��(
�0���� ���
���
����	�����	1� � 3+�
�������	�������������+���	
(���	��&&�
�(�+��������������
��(*�
������(�&���
(��
������
�����+�
��&��+������1�� �����	��%��
���(����������
�&��������
����+���
	�
	������ ����(� ����� ������ ����(� ���� %�� 	&���� 
�� ������ ����	� ��(� ����(�
&�����
����� �++���� ���� &����	�� ��	
(���	� �
��
�� ���� %����0�1� � '��� #��%���
�
	��(� ���%�� �����(�(� ����� 
�������
��� ����	��������	�+���
	����(���(�����
%����&�����(����������1�

3



�

������� � ���������	
��		�
��	�����
���������������������������

�
3����	&��	����������������	���(�������=��	�
��	���
	�(*�����
��
����������(�
����� ���� 
�&��������
����+� ����	��������	���(
����� ��	�����+� �
	���
�0� ��� ����
���������+� ���	�����
����
��� %�	
��		�	���(� 	��&&��	1� �������� ��������0��
��	�%�
�0���
�
	�(���(��
��
�0(�����(�%�����%������	����		+�����
�&�����������
	�	���1� �'���&��&�	�����	��� �
	<� ����
����
����	��
��
�0� ��� ��<��(��� ��� ����
%���+
�	�
������(���(�&��<
�0��������	�����(����������
�����	�1��#�
���������
��	�	� +��� &��<
�0� �����	� ����(� ��	�� %�� ��(���(� �	� ����� ����(� 
�������
��������
�� ���������		� ���(��	� ��
��� ����� ��		� �
<���� ��� %���<� (���1� � '���
	������ ����(� 	
�&�
+�� ��(� ��<�� �������� &��<
�0� ����0�	� +�
���� ��(� �����
���	
	����� %�� 
����(��
�0� �� /����� 	�	���� +��� &��<
�01� � '�
	� ����(� ������
(�&��(
�0� ��� �������� 
�� ��	� ��� 	������ &��<
�0*� ��� &��<
�0� 
�� ���� ����� ���
(
	��
���������1� � 3����	���&�(������ ����	����������(�%��
�&�������(�%���
(�
����1�
�
'��� 
��&������ $
������� �+� 2�	�����	� �B&��
��(� ����� ���� %�(0��� ��(� %����
(�	
0��(� ��� �B&���� �� F���	�� ��	�>� 	�����
�� ��(� ���� 
�&��������
��� �+� ����
	��������	�	�%"�������������	
��		�
�	����(�����(�%����0����������
����(�

������	��+���	�1��'���
�&��������
����+�����	����������(������	�%�������(*�
+�
(��
(�(�%��#��%��	������������	��0�1�
�
!������� �++
���� ��&����(� ����� ���� ���	�����
��� ��(� %���� ���&�����	
��� ��(�
&��+�		
������� ���(����(1� � !�� ��0��
	��
��� ��(� %���� ����
		
���(� ���
���(���� �� 	������ �
��� %�	
��		�	� ����		� ������� ��(� ��(� ����
��(�
�&&��B
��������������&����(�=��	�
����
��	1��-
��
����
	�=��	�
����
�����	��
%�	
��		�	� ��(� 	����(� ����� &��<
�0� +��� ���
�� ��	�����	� ��	� ���
�� %
00�	��

		��1��!���������0��
	��
�����(���	��%��������
		
���(�������(������	������
�
��� 	��&&��	1� � '��� +
�	�� 
		��� +��� ����� ��	� ���� 	��&&
�0� �++��� �
��
�� ��
	��&&
�0� ������1� � '��
�� 	����(� %
00�	�� 
		��� ��	� ������(� ��� ���� ��	�� �+�
&��<
�01��G+�����	��&&��	�	������(��������������
�(�	�
(�����������&��&���(�
���&���D�����������+������������
��(1�
�
'�����&��	�����
��	�+��������%�	
��		�	��������������(��������&��
�
�����(�
%����&��	����(��������
����
��
�������+������	
(���	��
��
���
�������=��	�
�0�
����(���
���
��������	���+�&��<
�0������(��
����1��'�
	�&��&�	�(�	��������	�
�����+�����������(1��!���������&��	�����
�����	����������(����������
����
��
	����(����<�+���	&��	��	�
�������
�����������������
��(1�
�
'�����&��	�����
��	���	����������(����������������0�������&�
�����������	�
�� ���<��+�&��<
�0�	&���	�+�������(�����&����	1� �'���
��
����������(������
&��<
�0���	����
		�����
�����	�	&��
+
���������	���
��(�%������.��(�������1�
�
!�#��%��� �+� ���������� ��	�� �B&��		�(� ���� �������� �������������	� %�
�0�
��<��������+���%�
��2�����	���
��	��	�&�����+�����%�(0���&��&�	��	1�� �����	�
��������(� ����� (
	��
��� ������	�����(� ���� %�� ������(��	�������	� ����'����

������ ��(� ����(� ���	�� ����� �
����� ��� %�� &��	���� �
��
�� ���� %����0��
0��������1� � 3�� ���� �
��� ��
	� ����(� ��	���� 
�� ����� ��
�
���
��� ��(� ���
�������
�++���� %�	
��		�	1� � '��� #��%��� ��	�� ��������(� ����� ���� ������ %�
�0�
�
��(����� +���� ��%�
�� 2�����  ���
��	� ����(� ���� ��	�� �	� ����� �	� ����

�&��������
����+������������
��(1��'���
��
����	&��(�(�%��	���
�0����������
��0������
��� �+� ���� '���� 
������ ������ ����� 
�� ����(� %�� ��=�
��(� ��� %��

4



�

���������	
��		�
��	�����
��������������������������� �������

������(� ��		� �	� ����������(� %������
����� 
������(� ������� ����� �����
�0�%��
���(1�
�
'��� #��%��� �+� ���� ������ ��	�� ��������(� ����� �	� &���� �+� ���� %�(0���
&��&�	��	�'��(��-�	�������(���� ���0���%����������(�%�� ����
����
�1� � 3������
�
�����
	���	���(
	�&&�
��
�0�(��
	
��1��'���
��
����	&��(�(�%��	���
�0������
����
����
����	���&&��B
�������D���*�����������
���������
�0�'��(��-�	�����(�
����� ��
	���(� ���%���((��		�(1� �.��<
�0�������������� ���0�����&��
�	�(�����
�
���'��(��-�	�������(�%�� 
���	�
0���(1� �'���
��
�� ����(���� 
�(�&��(����
��0��
	��
������������(�(
	&�	���+�'��(��-�	����������(���(���	�1��
�

�&
�������0������
�
'��� 
��&������ $
������� �+� 2�	�����	� &��	����(� 
�+�����
��� �����
�0� ��� ����

����
�>	� 
�&
���� ���0�����1� � '��� 
��&������ $
������� �B&��
��(� ����� ����

����
����	� +��
�0��������
�������+���	�	1� �'���&�����(�
�&
�������0������

������(�	&��(
�0���� 3'� 
�+��	��������*� �����	���(� 
���	������ 
�� ����'����

�����1�
�
3����	&��	�������=��	�
���%����#��%����+� ���������*� ����
��&������$
�������
��	&��(�(������
+�	�����	�%���������(��
�	�����
����
��������(�
���������0�
���	�� �
��� ���� 	������ +��� 
�	� �		��	1� � '��� 	������ ����� ���<� ��� +����
��	&��	
%
�
�
�	�
�������
������
�	�+����
��	���(���	�������(�+����������%������
�+�����
����
��+��(
�0�+�������<1�
�
'��� 
��&������ $
������� �+� 2�	�����	� ��&����(� ����� ���� 
����
�� ��	�
���(���
�0� �� 	
0�
+
����� ������� �+� ���<� ��� ��(���� ���� +��(
�0� 0�&1� � '�
	�

����(�(� ���
��
�0� ���� ��"��� ��������	*� ���
��
�0� 0������ &��&�	��	� ��(�
�00��0��
�0�	���
��	1�
�
'���
��&������$
���������	����&����(�������	� ���
����C���++
���*�	���%��
���(�
�������%������(���������%�(0�����(�%����&��	����(��	�&�����+�����&��&�	��	1��
����������
	���	������
�������
	<���(�	��	
%�����(����	���%����		��&�
��	�
��(�%������(�1�
�
G�� ��
	� 	���
��� �+� ���� ��&���*� #��%��	� �+� ���� ������ ��
	�(� �� ���%��� �+�
=���
�	���
�������
��
����(��++
���	���	&��(�(�����	�+�����	?�
�

•� 
�� ��	� ���
�
&���(� ����� DC1�� �
��
��� ����(� %�� ��������(� ��� &��� +���
��(��(�����&������	��
��
������
����
�@�

�

•� ���� ���%��� �+� ��&��� 	��&	� 
�� ������� '���� 
������ ��(� ���� (
	��
���
������	���(�(���
��(*��	���(��������%����+�����&����(���	
(���	���
	�
��	�����0�����
��������
�����������������
�����������
����
����@�

�

•� �++
���	� ����(� �
�������� ���� .����� )�����
�� !		�		����� ��� ����
#��%��	��+����������1�

�

5



�

������� � ���������	
��		�
��	�����
���������������������������

��	
��		�2���	�
�
'��� ������ ����
��(� 
�+�����
��� 
�� �����
��� ��� ��	
��		� 2���	1� !�� �++
����
��&����(�����+�����
�0?�
�

•� +������!&�
������*� ������������
�
�	�����(�%�����
���(������	������+�����

�������%��
��(�+����%�	
��		�����	�����0�(��	�&�����+�%�	
��		������
������
�����0
	���
��1��'�
	���	���������������������	�@�

�

•� ��	
��		� 2���	� ����(� %�� 
�����	
�01� � �������� ��
	� ��	� ���� ����

����
�>	� (��
	
��� %��� 	�����
�0� ����� ��	� 
�&�	�(� %�� 
�������
E���������@�

�

•� 3+���%�	
��		�(
(�����=���
+��+���	�����%�	
��		����
�+*����������%�	
��		�
����	�����(�%�����������(��	
�0� ����	���(��(�����
&�
�����
��� 
	��&� 
��
����&���(��
0�������������	�����%�	
��		�����	�����
&�
��@�

�

•� %�	
��		�����	�����(�%��&�
(��������
����
��
�����
�	�������	�(��
�0�����
����@�

�

•� �	�&�����+� �������		��
��	���������*�����&��&���
�	��
����������%���������
�����DCC*��������(��������	�&&�������������������((�(�������
��%
��1��
'�
	�	�&&�����������(������������&�
������&���(@�

�

•� 
��������*������(�5���%�	
��		�	�����(�&�����
	�	�&&������@�
�

•� 
����(�����%������������(�������������������������(� �������	
��		�
2���	�H �2I�	����������(�%���B���(�(�+�����+������������������#�����
���5@�

�

•� &��&���
�	��
��� �����%��� ������ H��I� ��(��� 6*��������(� ���� =���
+�� +���
���A����
�+��&����
����9�9���5���(�C�A�������+���@�

�

•� &��&���
�	� �
��� ��>	� %������� 6*���� ��(� ��� ����� ����� ��*���� ����(�
����
������
�+������	�
(
�0�	������
�������������+���������6*�����=���
�0�
����A���		����
�+@�

�

•� &��&���
�	� �
��� ��>	� �+� ��*���� ��(� �C*5;;� ����(� ����� ���
�� ����	�
���������(� �	
�0� ���� 	����� ��	
��		� 2���	� #���
&�
��� ������� ����� ����
�
0��������
&�
��@�

�

•� ���
�+�(
(������&&������)�&������&���
�	�������	������&
�(�%��
���
�
�	�
���
�����
���!������� &���	�
��%	�H
! 
>	I@�

�

•� ����
����
��&���
(�(�	�&&�������%�	
��		�	�
+��������(0�(�����&&�������
��(�������
��%�	
��		�����	1��'���
����
��(
(���0��(�"�%�
��	
0�&�	�
�0�
%�	
��		�	� ���=���
+
�(� ������	���� 	�������	���������(��		
	�� ����� 
+�
������
	��(� ��� �&&���1� � 3�� ��	� 
�&������� ��� ����� ����� ���� ���� �&&���	�
�����	����		+��@�

�

6



�

���������	
��		�
��	�����
��������������������������� ���5���

•� ���� 
����
�� ��	� ���<
�0� ���	���� �
��� ���� 8�����
��� G++
��� ���<
�0� ���
���	���&&���	��
���&�����
��� +����� ��(���
��� 
��%�	
��		� ����	1� � 3����	�
%�
�0����	
(���(�
+�����&��������+�����	�����(�%��&�	�&���(����	�&&����
%�	
��		�	�
+����������(�%�����
���(��������(���
�����������@�

�

•� 
�+�����
�������		
	��%�	
��		�	�
���&&���
�0������������+����
��%�	
��		�
����	���	� �����(�� �����
��(� ��� ����
����
�>	���%	
��1� ��������� ��
	�
����(�%���������(� �����	���� �������������		�0�	������&��(���(� +���
����%�	
��		�������
��@�

�

•� ���� ������� �+� ������	� 
�� �����
��� ��� %�	
��		� ����	� ��	� ��� 
�	� ����	��
�������������
�����	���&�	
�
���	
0�1�

�
!�#��%����+�������������������(�������������(����������	��0����		
	������
+��������
����
��'�B��++
���
�������
������%�	
��		�����	���(�+����������������(�
����
��(�����B��������	���
���+�����++
���	1�
�
���+��������
�
!���++
����������((��		�(�������������0��(
�0�����&��+��������
�������
������
	�&&���
�0�%�	
��		�	1��'����++
�����B&��
��(�����?�
�

•� ������
�	�
��'����
��������(���(���(�+���	����(�	����		
���=������@�
�

•� G, �%�	
��		�0������
������%����0����	�����	����(��
0��	��
��-�	��
.��(��*��
0���������-�	��
�	���*�
��(�����(�3	�
�0���@�

�

•� ����&����������(� +���������������(�.��(��*�%�����(� +����������� 
��
������������.��(��@�

�

•� ������� ��(� 
�	� ����	�� ���%��� �+� ����0� &��&��� ���� 
�� )�&��������
)(����
��� ��� '��
�
�01� ;6A� �+� ����0� &��&��� ����� 
�� )(����
���
)�&�������� J� '��
�
�01� � '��� ���
����� �����0�� ��	� ��15A� ��(� 
��
.��(���
����	��71�A1��

�
!� #��%��� �+� ���� ������ ����� =���
�(� ���� �����(����� +���� %�	
��		�
��&��	�����
��	���(�%���� ����+��� ��
	�����
�01� �!���++
�����B&��
��(������ ����
������ ��(� %���� &�%�
�
	�(� �
�� ���	������	*� ���
�	*� &������>	� ��%	
��	� ��(�
������	� 	�������1� � 3����	���<�����(0�(� ����� ��
�������(�����%��<�����(���	��
�����%�����	�(1�
�
!� ��&��	�����
��� +���� ����%�	
��		�	������ ��������(� �����&��&������������
�����	
�	�
�� ��� ���� ����0��� �+� ���
�0� ��� ����

�
�� 
������ +��� ������
�01� � 3��
����(� %�� �
	�� 
+� ��������
�0� ��	� ���(� ��� ��� �B������� ������ ��(� �
�<�(� ���
���������������+�
�����	���������%�	
��		�	�����1�
�
!��++
���� ��	&��(�(� �������B������	� +���������(�%���(����
	�(��������%��<�
��(� '�
����*� ��(� ������ ��	� ��� ���	��� ���� 
�� ����(� ���� %�� ���(� ��� ���

�(�&��(���������*���(�%���
�<�(������%�	
��		�	�&&���������1���
�

7



�

���C��� � ���������	
��		�
��	�����
���������������������������

!���������&��	�����
�����������(������
������(�%�����&+��� 
+������������
	��
(�������� ��������� ��� ���� %�	
��		� 	������ ��	� &��&���(� +��� �
������
��� ��(�
	��������
���(���������������+�������	
(����
��1�
�
!��������(��+���������
�0*�����
��
������<�(���������+��
�����(���+����
������
+��� ���� �
	� �++���	� 
�� &��(��
�0� �� %������(� &��&�	�(� %�(0��� 
�� �
0��� �+� ����
(
++
��������
�����������
����
����1�
�
���� !�"	��'����������&����%������(1�
�
H,���?��'�������
�0*����
�0���������(����71���&�*����	�(����;1���&�I1�
�
�
�
�
�
H 
0��(I�
GK,
3..G2��)3'���)22:�

��
�����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

8



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

HARROW BUSINESS 

CONSULTATIVE FORUM 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

20 January 2014 

Subject: 

 

INFORMATION REPORT – Draft 

Revenue Budget 2014/15,  Medium Term 
Financial Strategy  2014/15 to 2016/17 and 
Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18 

 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George – Director of Finance 
and Assurance 
 

Exempt: 

 

 No  
 

Enclosures: 

 

Draft Revenue Budget 2014/15 and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17 
report to Cabinet 12 December 2013 
Draft Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18 
report to Cabinet 12 December 2013 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 

 
This report sets out the Council’s proposals for the draft Revenue Budget and 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17 and also the Draft 
Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18 for consultation. 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 9 to 106

9



 

 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
The draft reports listed above were considered by Cabinet on 12 December 
2013.  The Director of Finance and Assurance will give a presentation on the 
proposals at the meeting.   
 
The final 2014/15 Budget, Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital 
Programme will be reported back to Cabinet on 13 February 2014 and to full 
Council on 27 February 2014. 
 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
The minutes of this meeting will be reported to Cabinet in February to enable 
the views of this meeting to be taken into account before setting the Budget,   
Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital Programme. 
 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
The financial implications are contained in the attached cabinet reports. 
 

Section 5 - Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  Yes 
 
 
An initial Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out on a number of 
the proposals. Full equalities impact assessments are being carried out on 
proposals where appropriate. An equalities impact assessment will be 
carried out on the whole budget and the Capital Programme, to ensure that 
decision makers are aware of any overall negative impact on any particular 
protected group. 
 

Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
The proposals impact on all of the corporate priorities as identified in the 
reports.  
 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Dawn Calvert X  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 06 January 2014 

   

 
 
 

10



Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact:  Dawn Calvert, Head of Strategic Finance and Business, email: 

dawn.calvert@harrow.gov.uk 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 

 
 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

 

Date: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Draft Revenue Budget 2014/15 and 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2014-15 to 2016-17 

Key Decision:  

 

Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George 
Director of Finance and Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Cllr Tony Ferrari 
Portfolio Holder for Finance 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendices listed below 
 

Appendices are attached as follows: 
 

No Appendix Page 
 

1 MTFS 2013/14 to 2016/17 as approved by 
Cabinet / Council February 2013 

6 

2 MTFS 2013/14 to 2016/17 as approved by 
Cabinet / Council– detailed investment / 
saving schedules (For information only) 

6 

3 MTFS 2013/14 to 2016/17 – Proposed 
changes to MTFS for member approval 
following budget re-fresh process.( These 
are the investments / savings that will be 
taken forward to set the council tax if 
approved by members) 

6 

4 MTFS 2014/15 to 2016/17 – Proposed 
investments / savings for member approval 
following budget re-fresh process. (These 
are the investments / savings that will be 
taken forward to set the council tax if 
approved by members) 

7 

5 Draft Public Health Funding 2014/15 10 

6 Schools Budget 2014/15 12 

 

13



Page 2 

Note: the page numbers in the table above refer to the small page numbers 
(bottom right of page) on the report itself and not the large numbers (bottom 
middle of page) that run throughout the agenda pack. 

14



Page 3 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out the draft revenue budget for 2014-15 and medium term 
financial strategy (MTFS) for 2014-15 to 2016-17. The budget will return to 
Cabinet in February 2014 for final approval and recommendation to Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

1) That Cabinet approves the draft budget as set out in appendix 3  
for 2014-15 and the MTFS for general consultation including an 
anticipated 0% Council Tax increase 

2) That Cabinet notes the current remaining budget gaps of 
£19.481m in 2015-16 and £18.612m in 2016/17.  

3) That Cabinet approves the draft Public Health budget for 
2014/15 as set out in Appendix 5 

4) That Cabinet notes the statutory changes to schools funding for 
2014/15 and approves the proposed arrangements for the 2014/15 
school funding formula as set out in Appendix 6  

5) That Cabinet agrees the sum of £239,219 as Harrow’s 
contribution to the London Grant Scheme in 2014/15   

6) That Cabinet agree to the establishment of a capital financing 
risk reserve to allow for delays in capital receipts in the current financial 
year 

 
REASON:   
To ensure that the Council publishes a draft budget for 2014-15 
 

 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Current Financial Context 
1.1 In 2010 the Government’s funding settlement meant Local Government  

received the most challenging funding settlement in decades, resulting in a 28% 
cut to the Council’s controllable costs over the 4 years to 2014/15, some £62m 
in Harrow’s case from 2010/11 levels of expenditure. This is on top of the £45m 
the Council has already saved before this, meaning that by 2015 the Council will 
have been making savings of over £10m a year for the last nine years. By and 
large Harrow has  demonstrated a successful track record in delivering these 
savings by: 

 ● Identifying efficiencies 
 ● Adopting a more commercial approach to contracting and procurement 
 ● Taking advantage of new technologies 
 ● Introducing new and innovative ways of service delivery 
 
1.2 The MTFS agreed by Cabinet and Council in February 2013 showed a balanced 

budget position for 2013/14 and 2014/15 with a budget gap of £15.693m and 
£14.236m for 2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.   The MTFS included an 
indicative assumption that Council Tax would increase at 2% per annum.   

15



Page 4 

 
1.3 The draft budget set out in this report shows a refreshed MTFS with a number of 

changes requiring Cabinet approval.  The changes achieve a balanced budget 
position for 2014/15 with an estimated budget gap of £19.481m and £18.612m 
for 2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.  In terms of Council Tax, the refreshed 
MTFS assumes a 0% increase from 2014/15 to 2016/17.    The estimated cost 
of a reduction of 1% in Council Tax is £930.5k.  

 
1.4 All councils, not just Harrow, continue to find themselves in a very uncertain and 

volatile situation with a significant number of external events, beyond the 
Council’s control, adversely impacting on funding and the nature of demand for 
Harrow services.  The economy is showing the early signs of recovery but this is 
not expected to lead to any change in the Government’s policy regarding 
funding levels to Local Government. This continues to create a very challenging 
environment for the very real role that local government plays in the local 
community and the positive impact that the Council can have on people’s quality 
of life.  This does mean that the Council will have to consider how to fund 
specific new projects requested by Members.   

 
1.5 The provisional grant settlement for 2014/15 is expected to be announced on 19 

December 2013 with the final settlement in late January and the impact of the 
announcements on the draft budget will be reported to Cabinet in February 
2014.   

 
 

External Environment  
2.1 The challenging environment the Council faces is caused by a number of 

external factors which the Council must make budgetary provision for in the 
MTFS.  The key external factors are summarised below along with the relevant 
MTFS adjustments: 

 
● Harrow is one of the lowest funded councils in London.  Earlier in the year 

London Councils estimated the reductions in formula grant for 2014/15.  
Harrow’s reduction was estimated at £1m and this is adjusted for in the 
refreshed MTFS.    

 
● From April 2013, as a result of the change in the NNDR scheme, 

Council’s are allowed to keep 30% of increases in Business Rates.  
Historically Harrow has not increased its tax base due to the trend of 
converting commercial property to domestic use.   

 
● The Government has announced Council Tax Freeze Grants over the last 

couple of years.  The MTFS agreed in February 2013 assumed no such 
grant on account of the indicative assumption of a 2% Council Tax 
increase.  The MTFS for 2014/15 to 2016/17 has been refreshed to 
reflect a 0% increase in Council Tax.  The impact of this assumption for 
three years is shown in table 2 below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



Page 5 

 Table 2: Financial Impact of 0% Increase in Council Tax 2014/15 to 
2016/17  

 

Action 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost of 0% increase in 
Council Tax 

1,861 1,861 1,861 5,583 

Receipt of Council Tax 
Grant – 2014/15 

(1,055) 0 1,055 0 

Receipt of Council Tax 
Grant – 2015/16 

 (1,055) 1,055 0 

Net Impact 806 806 3971 5,583 

(The numbers in this table are based on 2013/14 data and will be updated once 
the tax base is finally agreed and the grant settlement is received in December 
2013.)  
 

 The following points explain the contents of table 2 above: 

• The estimated cost of a reduction of 1% in Council Tax is £930.5k 

• In 2014/15 the estimate CT freeze grant is £1.055m.  This will be 
received for two years only therefore comes out of the MTFS in 
2016/17 

• In 2015/16 the estimate CT freeze grant is £1.055m.  This will be 
received for one year only therefore comes out of the MTFS in 
2016/17 

• In 2016/17 there has been no indication of a CT freeze grant being 
received therefore no grant has been built into the MTFS. 

 
 
● From 1 April 2013 the responsibility for the Council Tax Support Scheme 

was transferred to the Council but with a 10% reduction in budget 
meaning Harrow had to save £3.8m to be able to fund the scheme in year 
one.  A report was taken to Cabinet in November recommending no 
amendments be made to Harrow’s support scheme for 2014/15 hence no 
adjustment have been made in the refreshed MTFS.   

 

• The Government are implementing the largest ever reform to the benefits 
system in an effort to save £18bn from the welfare bill. The changes are 
complex and the original MTFS included growth of £2m in 2013/14 to 
create a Welfare Reform contingency with £1m of the growth scheduled 
for removal in 2015/16.  The anticipated pressures of welfare reform have 
not yet materialised as expected and this is reflected in the refreshed 
MTFS by the £2m growth being removed in 2014/15.  This does however 
increase the level of potential risk as we cannot yet assess the full impact 
of welfare reform until it is fully implemented.  In additional the council is 
currently experiencing increased numbers of homelessness families 
which will increase this risk further.   

• The care and support spending round settlement announced the creation 
of a £3.8bn pooled health and social care budget from 2015-16.  This is 
predicated on much better integration between health and social care, so 
that care is centred around the person rather than the service.  In the 
Spending Review 2013 an extra £200m was announced for 2014/15 to 
support integration.  The specific details of this funding and how it will be 
transferred to Local Authorities remains subject to confirmation.   

17



Page 6 

• The 2011 Census data shows there has been a 15% increase in 
population in the last 10 years with the biggest growth being in the birth 
rate with a 33% increase in 0-4 year olds increasing the demand for both 
school and nursery places.  For people aged over 80 years old the 
census showed an estimated increase of 1000 people. The original MTFS 
allowed for adult demographic growth of £2.8m in 2013/14 and £2.6m in 
2014/15.  In the refreshed MTFS a further £600k growth has been 
included for demographic growth within Adult Services.    

 

Financial Performance for 2012/13 and 2013/14 

3.1 In 2012/13 the Council under spent by £0.996m after a planned transfer to 
reserves of £9.808m as detailed below: 

 
MTFS Implementation cost      £4.849m 
Carry forward requests 12/13     £3.268m 
Business Risk       £1.691m 

          £9.808m 

3.2 In 2013/14 the Council budget includes £10m of investment and a challenging 
savings target of £22.4m.  The 2013/14 Quarter 2 Revenue Monitoring Report 
forecasts a net budget pressure of £2.61m on directorate budgets reducing to a 
pressure of £1.88m after accounting for corporate items.  The directorates 
continue to work on management actions to further reduce the forecast pressure 
by year end. 

 
 

2014/15 Budget Refresh Process 
 
4.1 The MTFS as approved by Cabinet / Council in February 2013 is detailed in 

Appendix 1.  The strategy covered the four year period 2013/14 to 2016/17.  It 
showed a balanced budget position for 2013/14 and 2014/15 and a budget gap 
of £15.693m and £14.236m for 2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.  The detailed 
investment and saving schedules supporting the approved MTFS are detailed in 
Appendix 2.  A number of the narratives have been re-freshed.  The original 
MTFS narrative is shown in bold and the re-fresh amendments are shown in 
normal text.     

 
4.2 Officers were asked to review approved investments and savings for 2013/14 

and 2014/15 to ensure they are financially robust and deliverable and that they 
are in line with the current administrations policies of Cleaner, Safer and Fairer.  
The refresh process has resulted in a total of 67 proposed changes and takes 
the budget gap for 2014/15 to a small surplus of £24k.  The budget gaps for 
2015/16 and 2016/17 are £19.481m and £18.612m respectively.  The revised 
MTFS assumes a 0% increase in Council Tax over the three year period.  These 
changes are summarised in table 2 below and shown in detail in Appendix 3.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



Page 7 

 
 
Table 2: MTFS Refresh – Proposed Changes for 2014/15 

 Children 
& Families 

Environment 
& Enterprise 

Community,  
Health & 
Wellbeing 

Resources Technical 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Unachievable 
savings 

300 1,490 2,357 460 0 

Re-profiled 
investments / 
savings 

0 456 0 (310) 0 

Agreed 
growth no 
longer 
required 

0 (726) 0 0 0 

New growth 800 855 867 150 0 

Substitute 
savings 

0 (1,010) 0 (280) 0 

Technical 
budget 
changes 

0 0 0 0 (5,433) 

TOTAL 1,100 1,065 3,224 20 (5,433) 

 
4.3.1 Appendix 4 details the investments and savings to the budget for 2014/15 to 

2016/17 after the MTFS refresh changes as detailed in appendix 3.   
 
 
Proposed Directorate Changes 
4.4 In total the proposed directorate changes add growth of £5.409m into the MTFS 

in 2014/15.  The impact is summarised in table 2 above and the details are 
shown in Appendix 3.  Further details are provided for the more significant 
items: 

 
 Children and Families 
 
● The unachievable savings value of £300k relates to procurement.  Procurement 

savings of £690k were planned over 2 years.  Savings are being achieved on 
placements budgets through the work being undertaken with the West London 
Alliance.  SEN Transport is subject to a separate savings target of £641k over 2 
years therefore there is limited scope for further savings to achieve the full target 
of £690k.   

 
● The growth of £800k covers two areas.  First growth of £300k is requested to 

cover an increase in demand for Special Needs transport.  Between Autumn 
term 2012 and Autumn term 2013 the number of young people requiring 
transport increased by 45 at a cost of £145k.  If this trend continues the 
estimated demand pressure in 2014/15 is £300k.   

 
● Secondly growth of £500k has been allocated to cover the costs of an additional 

12 Social Worker posts. 
 
 
 

19



Page 8 

 Environment and Enterprise  
 
● The unachievable savings value of £1.490m covers nine savings.  Three of the 

savings which total £560k are proposed for removal in line with the current 
administrations priorities as detailed: 
● Returning parks to open space (£275k) 
● Review parks and cemeteries opening and locking and review specialist 

dog waste collection (£105k) 
● Introduction of Civic Centre staff car parking charges and other free car 

parks (£180k) 
 
● The proposal to re-profile involves moving the savings for efficiencies from the 

Towards Excellence programme (£375k) and Grounds maintenance: annualised 
hours (£81k) from 2014/15 to 2015/16. 

 
● The directorate are releasing previously agreed growth to go back into the 

MTFS.  There are three elements of growth no longer required the most 
significant being growth of £568k agreed for 20 minute free parking.   
   

● Seven bids for additional growth are proposed totalling £855k which are 
matched by substitute savings of £1.010m.  £700k of the substitute savings is 
proposing to re-align the budget for Parking Services income to reflect historical 
performance.  The other significant substitute saving is for £300k relating to a 
proposal to increase leisure centre parking income.   

 
● Between now and February 2014 a number of commercially sensitive issues are 

being resolved that may need to be accommodated within the final MTFS when 
it comes back to Cabinet in February.   

   
Community Health and Wellbeing 
 
● Within the twelve agreed savings proposed for removal there are three 

significant items, from the £14.5m savings agreed over the two year period 
2013-14 and 2014-15.  The first is £500k to secure further earmarked 
investment from the PCT / CCG in Adult Social Care.  The NHS Transfer grant 
is budgeted at £3.535m in 2013/14.  Agreement on the s256 has now been 
reached and has resulted in the Council supporting the CCG STARRS service 
by £500k.  Whilst the transfer for 2014-15 has yet to be agreed (and the grant is 
estimated to increase slightly to £3.636m), it is unlikely that the grant transfer 
will be significantly higher than the agreed 2013-14 position, hence the removal 
of this saving. The second relates to savings in older people’s integrated care 
for £800k.  Again this is related to funding negotiations with the CCG and their 
capacity to work with the Council to deliver the savings.    

 
● The third significant unachievable saving is the commercialisation of Hatch End 

pool, Harrow Arts Centre, Museum and Bannister stadium (£355k).  A 
commercialisation project has been set up to further investigate whether this 
saving can be delivered in the longer term.  

 
● There are three bids for additional growth the most significant being for £600k 

demographic growth in Adult Services, and is in addition to the current MTFS 
demographic growth.  The additional growth is as a result of an increasing 
number of referrals and increasing signs of complexity, an increasing number of 
cases moving into the borough and a significant increase in mental health 
referral rates.  Overall the CCG financial position is very serious and it is 

20



Page 9 

possible that there will be continued pressures experienced as a result, although 
the Council will continue to work constructively to ensure that no inappropriate 
costs are borne by Adult Social Care.  This will mean that the growth position 
will need to be continually monitored until the final budget is set.  

 
Resources 
 
● There are six unachievable savings are proposed for removal, the most 

significant being to withdraw the expansion of Legal Practice Shared Services 
(£200k). 

 
● The two growth bids are IT related.  £100k is proposed for the revenue 

implications of security enhancements required by Public Services Network 
(PSN) and £50k is proposed for the contractual increase for channel migration 
supplier costs.   

 
● The substitute saving of £280k is a new saving in relation to the current 

consultation process to delete the post of Chief Executive and associated 
business support. 

     
 
Proposed Technical Budget Changes 
4.5 In total the proposed technical budget changes create capacity of £5.433m in 

the MTFS for 2014/15.  The significant changes are detailed below: 
 
● Capital financing costs and investment income – Following a review 

additional capital financing costs of £910k and £700k are required in 2014/15 
and 2015/16 respectively.  This is as a result to delays in capital receipts.  

 
● New Homes Bonus – In March 2013 the government announced the creation 

of the Local Growth Fund for LEP’s who will access funding from 2015.  
Nationally the fund will amount to £2 billion in 2015/16 and £170m of this 
funding will come from the New Homes Bonus (NHB).  London Councils have 
modelled what the NHB top slice will look like and their estimate for Harrow is 
£1.6m in 2015/16.  This has been reflected in the refreshed MTFS. 

 
● Education Support Grant  – The MTFS was based on £2.5m of ESG being 

received in 2013/14 with the grant reducing by £1m per annum over 2014/15 
and 2015/16, leaving £500k in the 2016/17 base budget.   These assumptions 
have been reviewed taking into account updated pupil numbers, estimated 
academy conversions and government announcements on funding reductions. 
In January 2013 DFE announced a £10m reduction in ESG between 13/14 and 
14/15 and from 2015/16 the ESG will be reduced nationally by £200m with this 
funding being transferred to the creation of the Local Growth Fund for LEP’s. 
The MTFS has been refreshed to assume additional grant in 14/15 but with 
grant reductions in 2015/16 and 2016/17.  By 2016/17 there will be £300k left in 
the base budget. 

 
● Council Tax and CT Freeze Grant - The MTFS assumed an annual 2% 

increase in Council Tax.   To freeze the Council Tax at 0% increase over the 3 
year period 2014/15 to 2016/17 is estimated to cost £1.861m per annum.  A 
Council Tax freeze grant of £1.055m is assumed for 2014/15 and 2015/16.  The 
financial implications of this are shown in table 1.    

 

21



Page 10 

● Formula Grant Reduction – A reduction in formula grant of £1m is estimated 
for 2014/15.  This is based on estimates from London Councils and will be 
finalised once the grant settlement is announced on 19 December. 

 
● Council Tax Base / Collection Fund – Additional funding of £1.519m has been 

assumed as a result of the increase in the council tax base as a result of a 
mixture of new properties and an under spend on the Council Tax Support 
Scheme.  A prudent increase of £100k has been assumed in the Council Tax 
base for 2015/16 and 2016/17 and this will be refreshed for the February 
Cabinet report using the agreed Council Tax base.   The Collection Fund is 
assumed to increase by £681k as a result of the additional collection of arrears, 
new properties coming on stream mid year and static growth on the Council Tax 
Support Scheme.  . 

 
● Budget Planning Contingency - The contingency currently stands at £1.171m.  

The MTFS planned to increase the contingency by £1.829m in 2014/15.  To 
achieve a balanced budget position the proposal is to not increase the 
contingency in 2014/15 and keep it at its 2013/14 level.  A contingent figure in 
the region of £1m in the base budget is consistent with previous years.    

 
● Welfare Reform Contingency – In 2013/14 growth of £2m was built into the 

MTFS to fund anticipated pressures as a result of the governments Welfare 
Reforms.   The plan was to reduce the growth by £1m in 2015/16 to leave £1m 
in the base budget going forward.  The implementation of the Welfare Reform 
cost pressures have not materialised as expected.  To achieve a balanced 
budget for 2014/15 it is proposed to remove the Welfare Reform Contingency in 
full in 2014/15.  There is a risk to this proposal, if anticipated costs start to 
materialise these will have to be contained within current resources.  

 
● Reduce inflation on goods and services - The current MTFS assumes 

inflation of 2% per annum on goods and services.  As at October RPI is 2.6% 
per the Office for National Statistics.  The proposal is to reduce inflation to 1.3% 
for the three years 2014/15 to 2016/17 which creates £600k within the MTFS 
each year.  This proposal is a concern for the directorates and will require strong 
contract management to manage the reduction.  Officers will ensure this limited 
budget is prioritised in an efficient manner in order to reflect where price inflation 
does and does not occur.   

 
 
 

 Public Health Funding 2014/15 
 
5.1 A two year ring fenced grant allocation for Public Health was announced in 

January 2013 with Harrow allocated £9.146m for 2014-15.  The DOH recently 
announced the extension of the ring fenced grant for a further year to 31st March 
2016.  In setting the allocations, the DOH set a minimum of 2.8% and maximum 
of 10% growth in budgets for each year – 19 local authorities are at the 
minimum in 2014-15 and 8 at the maximum. The increase for Harrow in 2014-15 
is 3.1%, marginally above the minimum increase, resulting in Harrow being the 
2nd lowest spend per head of population over the 33 London boroughs.   

 
5.2 2013/14 has been the first year that Public Health team have operated within the 

Council and in agreement with Barnet Council, a joint team has been developed 
and is supported by a single Director of Public Health.  Given a number of 

22



Page 11 

uncertainties around liabilities and potential additional responsibilities, a prudent 
approach was taken in setting the commissioning intentions and a contingency 
was held to mitigate some of these risks whilst taking time to consider 
appropriately how best to utilise this funding to meet both public health and 
wider Council objectives.   

 
5.3 During this first year of operation a number of contracts have been reviewed and 

consolidated with existing Council contracts, and a programme of procurement 
will continue into 2014-15 to ensure that commissioned services provide value 
for money, meet public health outcomes and reflect the commitment to providing 
support to those most in need.  Appendix 4 details the level of funding proposed 
across both the mandatory and discretionary services and proposes additional 
investments in priority areas, a contingency and enables an unallocated amount 
of grant to be held for later allocation as appropriate.  

 
5.4 Cabinet are asked to approve the draft Public Health budget for 2014/15 as 

detailed in Appendix 5.  Following approval of the draft budget the 
commissioning intentions will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board at 
its meeting in January 2014. 

 
 

Contingency 
 
6.1 The planned contingency within the budget for 2014/15 was £5m made up of 

£2m for Welfare Reform and £3m for budget planning.   Following the refresh 
process the proposed contingency for 2014/15 will be £1.171m.  This is a 
significant reduction and will mean directorates will have to monitor their 
budgets very tightly and pressures, as far as possible, will have to be contained 
within current resources The contingency is needed if, for example, decision 
makers decide not to implement proposals due to adverse equalities 
implications. 

 

Equality Impact Assessments 
 
7.1 All new service budget proposals and those previously approved which cover 

2013/14 and 2014/15 are subject to an initial equalities impact assessment.  Full 
equalities impact assessments will be carried out on proposals where 
appropriate.  An equalities impact assessment will be carried out on the whole 
budget, when all proposals have been identified, to ensure that decision makers 
are aware of any overall impact on any particular protected group.   

 
 

London Boroughs Grants Scheme 
 
8.1 The London Boroughs Grants Committee proposed a scheme for London that 

cost London Boroughs £9m in 2013-14 compared to £11.5m in 2012-13.  This 
gave Harrow a saving of £74k in 2013-14.   

 
8.2 The Leaders Committee at London Councils met on 12 November 2013 to 

propose contributions for 2014/15.  Harrow’s contribution is £239,219, a 
reduction of 9.3% on last year.  .   

 
8.3 Cabinet is asked to agree the sum of £239,219 as Harrow’s contribution to the 

London Grant Scheme in 2014/15. 

23



Page 12 

 
 

Proposals for General Reserves 
 
9.1 The detailed risk assessment of the budget will be updated for February cabinet. 

The Cabinet agreed the following reserves policy in February 2012: 
 

The risk assessment of the budget dictates the minimum level of general 
balances required. 
 
One of the calls on any under spend at the end of the year will be a 
contribution to general balances.  The value of the contribution will be 
determined with regard to the size of the under spend, the underlying 
strength of the balance sheet, the need to support the transformation 
programme, and other priorities. 
 
At the current time no amendments are required to the reserves policy. 
 

9.2 The value of non ear marked reserves as at 01 November 2013 is £8.646m.     
 
9.3 The schedule of property disposals is subject to delays dependent upon a 

mixture of issues including the disposals process and the change in market 
conditions.   To support managing this scenario Members are asked to agree 
to the establishment of a capital financing risk reserve to allow for delays in 
capital receipts.  

 
 

Schools Budget 2014/15 
 
10.1 The funding arrangements for the Dedicated Schools Grant and the Schools 

budget for 2014/15 are detailed in Appendix 6.  Cabinet are asked to note the 
statutory changes to schools funding for 2014/15 and approve the proposed 
arrangements for the 2014/15 schools funding formula (as agreed by Schools 
Forum on 15 October 2013), 

 
 

Legal implications 

 
11.1 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality duty in 

making their decisions. The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not 
duties to secure a particular outcome. The equalities impact will be revisited on 
each of the proposals as they are developed. Consideration of the duties 
should precede the decision. It is important that Cabinet has regard to the 
statutory grounds in the light of all available material such as consultation 
responses. The statutory grounds of the public sector equality duty are found 
at section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 

 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

24



Page 13 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate 
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionately low. 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 
from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to 
take account of disabled persons’ disabilities. 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

(a) Tackle prejudice, and 
(b) Promote understanding. 
Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more 

favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that 
would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. The relevant protected 
characteristics are: 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender reassignment 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race, 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 

• Marriage and Civil partnership 
 
 
11.2 It is important that robust equalities impact assessments are completed and that 

consultation is done whilst the budget is in a formative stage prior to final 
approval in February 2014. 

 
11.3 The Council has a fiduciary duty to residents to set a balanced budget. 
 
 

Consultation 
 
12.1 As a matter of public law the duty to consult with regards to proposals to vary, 

reduce or withdraw services will arise in 3 circumstances: 
• Where there is a statutory requirement in the relevant legislative 
framework; 
• Where the practice has been to consult or where a policy document 
states the council will consult then the council must comply with its own 
practice or policy; and 
• Exceptionally, where the matter is so important that there is a legitimate 
expectation of consultation. 
 

25



Page 14 

12.2 Regardless of whether the Council has a duty to consult, if it chooses to consult, 
such consultation must be carried out fairly. In general, a consultation can only 
be considered as proper consultation if: 

• Comments are genuinely invited at the formative stage; 
• The consultation documents include sufficient information about  the 
proposal to allow those being consulted to be properly informed and to 
give an informed response; 
• There is adequate time given to the consultees to consider the 
proposals; and 
• There is a mechanism for feeding back the comments and those 
comments are conscientiously taken into account by the decision maker / 
decision making body when making a final decision. 

 
 12.3 Finally there will be staff consultation about these proposals in line with the 

Council’s procedures. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
13.1 Financial matters are integral to this report. 

 
Performance Issues 
 
14.1 The in- year measurement of the Council is reported in the Strategic 

Performance Report.  The Corporate Plan, which will be developed alongside 
the Budget Report, will have measures within it which will set out how Council 
delivery in 2014/15 will be measured and this again will be reported through the 
Strategic Performance Report.   

 
 

Environmental Impact  
 
15.1 The environmental impact of the draft budget will be complex and the net 

position is not known at present. 
 

Risk Management Implications 

 
16.1 As part of the budget process the detailed budget risk register will be reviewed 

and updated.  This helps to test the robustness of the budget and support the 
reserves policy. 

 

Corporate Priorities 

 
17.1 The draft budget for 2014/15 supports delivery of the Council’s vision and 

priorities. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

26



Page 15 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of 

Name:…Simon George x   Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

  
Date: 2 December 2013 

   

    
On behalf of 

Name: …Jessica Farmer x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 2 December 2013 

   
 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of 

Name:Alex Dewsnap…… x  Divisional Director 

  
Date:   30 November 2013 

  Strategic Commissioning 

 
 

27



Page 16 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
On behalf of 

Name:……Andrew Baker…. x  Corporate Director of 
Environment & Enterprise 

  
Date:  2 December 2013 

   

 
 
 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 

Contact: Dawn Calvert 
Head of Strategic Finance and Business,  email 
dawn.calvert@harrow.gov.uk 

 

Background Papers: 

• None  
 
 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

 
(for completion by Democratic 
Services staff only) 
 

  
YES/ NO / NOT APPLICABLE* 
 
 
 
*  Delete as appropriate 

28



Page 17 

 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2013-14 to 2016-17 APPENDIX 1

(AS APPROVED BY CABINET / COUNCIL FEBRUARY 2013)

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015/16 2016-17

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Budget Requirement Brought Forward 173,113 181,063 174,120 168,874

Capital Financing Costs 1,102 -743 -390 841

Grant Changes 11,914 642 475 -525

Other Technical Changes 4,557 1,235 2,279 3,289

Inflation 2,784 3,160 4,060 4,060

Transformation -2,234 -296 -140 0

Community Health and Wellbeing -2,255 -6,282 2,800 2,500

Children and Families -1,076 -1,672 413 413

Environment and Enterprise -4,469 -1,414 675 753

Resources -2,373 -1,573 275 -225

Total 7,950 -6,943 10,447 11,106

FUNDING GAP 0 0 -15,693 -14,236

Total Change in Budget Requirement 7,950 -6,943 -5,246 -3,130

Revised Budget Requirement 173,113 181,063 174,120 168,874 165,744

Collection Fund Deficit/-surplus -1,335 -1,045 -500 0 0

Revenue Support Grant -67,196 -52,100 -43,075 -36,282 -31,066

Top Up -20,154 -20,773 -20,773 -20,773

Retained Non Domestic Rates 0 -14,725 -14,872 -15,021 -15,171

Amount to be raised from Council Tax 104,582 93,039 94,900 96,798 98,734

Council Tax at Band D £1,186.55  £  1,210.28  £  1,234.49  £  1,259.18 £1,284.36

Increase in Council Tax (%) 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Tax Base 88,140 76,874 76,874 76,874 76,874

Collection rate 98.50% 97.50% 97.50% 97.50% 97.50%

Gross Tax Base 89,482 78,845 78,845 78,845 78,845

31



APPENDIX 1

32



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
a
p

it
a
l 
a
n

d
 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t

T
e
c
h
 0

0
1

C
a
p

it
a
l 
fi

n
a
n

c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 

in
c
o

m
e

1
,1

0
2

-7
4
3

-3
9
0

8
4
1

T
o

ta
l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
a
n

d
 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

1
,1

0
2

-7
4
3

-3
9
0

8
4
1

0

G
ra

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

T
e
c
h
 0

0
2

N
e
w

 h
o

m
e
s
 b

o
n

u
s
 -

 T
o
p
 s

lic
e
 o

f 
N

e
w

 H
o
m

e
s
 

B
o
n
u
s
 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 L

E
P

 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

S
p
e
n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

C
S

R
) 

2
0
1
3

-1
1
4
6

-5
9
1

-5
2
5

-5
2
5

-2
,8

6
7

T
e
c
h
 0

0
3

S
S

C
F

 G
ra

n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
G

L
A

) 
- 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

. 
G

ra
n
t 
n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
n
ri
n
g
fe

n
c
e
d

9
8

0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
4

C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 G

ra
n

t 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 -

 

o
n

e
 o

ff
 o

n
ly

2
,6

0
8

0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
5

P
C

T
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 v

ia
 s

2
5
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 C

C
G

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

v
ia

 s
2
5
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 b

y 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 H
e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
-5

4
6

2
3
3

T
e
c
h
 0

0
6

G
ra

n
ts

 r
o

ll
e
d

 i
n

to
 F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t.

 S
p
e
c
if
ic

 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 n
o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 f

o
rm

u
la

 f
u
n
d
in

g
1
3
,7

1
4

0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
7

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t.

 N
e
w

 g
ra

n
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
L
E

A
) 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 f

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t

-2
,5

0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

-2
,5

0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

0
8

E
a
rl

y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 G

ra
n

t 
S

p
e
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 

D
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

S
G

)
-3

1
4

3
1
4

T
o

ta
l 
G

ra
n

t 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

1
1
,9

1
4

6
4
2

4
7
5

-5
2
5

-5
,0

5
3

O
th

e
r 

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

T
e
c
h
 0

1
2

F
re

e
d

o
m

 P
a
s
s
 L

e
v

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

F
re

e
d
o
m

 

p
a
s
s
e
s
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t
o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 b
y 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

T
fL

)
6
8
1

3
5
0

3
6
0

3
7
0

9
,6

6
2

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
e
c
h
 0

1
3

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
3
0
0

0
0

0
1
,7

3
0

C
a
p

it
a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
/r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

33



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

T
e
c
h
 0

1
4

R
e
d

u
c
e
 r

e
li
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

a
p

it
a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

9
8
6

1
4

0
0

1
4

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

T
e
c
h
 0

1
5

P
ri

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

C
o

s
ts

-r
e
v

e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

b
a
ll
o

o
n

 p
a
y
m

e
n

t 
a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 O
n
e
 o

ff
 c

o
s
t 
in

 2
0
1
2
-

1
3

-4
2
1

4
2
1

T
e
c
h
 0

1
6

P
in

n
e
r 

R
o

a
d

 c
o

s
ts

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 d

is
p

o
s
a
l 
- 

o
n

e
 o

ff
 

in
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
-1

0
1
0

T
e
c
h
 0

1
7

B
a
la

n
c
e
 o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
s
t 

(S
S

C
) 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 -

 n
e
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 n

o
n

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 

fu
n

d
. 
C

o
s
t 
to

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 H

R
A

.
1
5
0

1
5
0

3
,4

2
2

T
e
c
h
 0

1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

1
7
1

1
,8

2
9

3
0
0
0

3
0
0
0

1
7
1

T
e
c
h
 0

1
9

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

W
e
lf

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s

2
,0

0
0

-1
0
0
0

2
,0

0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
0

S
a
v

in
g

 f
ro

m
 f

o
rm

u
la

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 o

n
 f

re
e
d

o
m

 

p
a
s
s
e
s
 -

 a
g

re
e
d

 a
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 c
o

u
n

c
il
s
 T

E
C

 i
n

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 R

e
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 g

iv
in

g
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
o
s
ts

-1
0
8

-8
1

-8
1

9
,6

6
2

T
e
c
h
 0

2
1

U
ti

li
ty

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
 

o
v

e
rs

ta
te

d
-3

0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
2

R
e
d

u
n

d
a
n

c
y
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
1
,0

0
0

-1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
O

th
e
r 

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s

4
,5

5
7

1
,2

3
5

2
,2

7
9

3
,2

8
9

2
8
,0

9
2

P
a
y
 a

n
d

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

T
e
c
h
 0

2
3

P
a
y
 A

w
a
rd

 @
 1

%
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
, 
th

e
n

 

2
%

 p
a

9
5
0

9
5
0

1
8
5
0

1
8
5
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
4

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r'

s
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 @

 0
.2

5
%

 i
n

 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 0
.5

%
 p

.a
.

2
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
5

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 @

 1
.5

%
 i
n

 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 2
%

 p
.a

. 
fr

o
m

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
1
,3

6
0

1
,8

1
0

1
,8

1
0

1
,8

1
0

T
e
c
h
 0

2
6

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 a

n
d

 g
a
s
 

p
ri

c
e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
s

2
5
7

34



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

T
e
c
h
 0

2
7

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

R
P

I 
( 

2
.9

%
)o

n
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

N
o

n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti

c
 R

a
te

s
 o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 

a
b

o
v

e
 2

%
1
7

T
o

ta
l 
P

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
ri

c
e
 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

2
,7

8
4

3
,1

6
0

4
,0

6
0

4
,0

6
0

0

C
R

O
S

S
 C

U
T

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E

T
e
c
h
 0

2
8

M
o

b
il
e
 a

n
d

 F
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 -
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

9
6

2
4

T
e
c
h
 0

2
9

T
e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
. 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 t
e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

.

-9
6
0

-3
2
0

-1
4
0

T
e
c
h
 0

3
0

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

. 
 

1
0
0

T
e
c
h
 0

3
1

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
a
v

in
g

s
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs
. 
N

o
te

 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

T
e
c
h
 0

3
2

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

ta
ff

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 u
s
a
g

e
. 

N
o
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

T
e
c
h
 0

3
3

S
ta

ff
in

g
 -

 V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 f

ill
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

. 
N

o
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

-7
6
4

-2
9
6

-1
4
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
1
9
5
9
3

3
9
9
8

6
2
8
4

7
6
6
5

2
3
0
3
9

35



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
F

 0
0
1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 C
L

A
 (

C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r)

 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

 r
e
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
7
8

1
7
8

1
7
8

1
7
8

6
,8

6
5

C
F

 0
0
2

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 C
W

D
 (

C
h

il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
) 

c
li
e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 r
e
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 

in
 c

h
il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

8
2

8
2

8
2

8
2

1
,3

2
6

C
F

 0
0
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 

d
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
5
3

1
5
3

1
5
3

1
5
3

8
,4

1
3

C
F

 0
0
4

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti

c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

9
0

1
0

4
9
6

C
F

 0
0
5

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
d

u
ti

e
s
 f

ro
m

 Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

in
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

n
e
w

 d
u

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

o
n

 r
e
m

a
n

d

2
7
0

2
7
0

C
F

 0
0
6

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

e
e
d

s
 (

S
E

N
) 

p
o

s
t 

to
 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 n

e
w

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti

e
s

5
0

4
3
3

C
F

 0
0
7

Q
u

a
li
fi

e
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

- 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
&

 

R
e
te

n
ti

o
n

 M
a
rk

e
t 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t
1
5
0

4
,8

5
2

C
F

 0
0
8

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
d

v
a
n

c
e
d

 P
ra

c
ti

ti
o

n
e
r 

S
o

c
ia

l 

W
o

rk
e
r 

(S
W

) 
p

o
s
ts

3
1
0

7
0

8
,4

1
3

C
F

 0
0
9

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

ro
le

 -
 p

o
s
t-

M
u

n
ro

7
0

7
7
6

C
F

 0
1
0

H
e
a
lt

h
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
p

o
s
t 

a
t 

N
o

rt
h

w
ic

k
 

P
a
rk

 H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
(N

W
P

)
5
0

6
1
8

C
F

 0
1
1

Y
o

u
th

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
x
tr

a
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

7
0

6
4
1

C
F

 0
1
2

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
s
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 n

e
w

 

tr
a
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

9
7

-9
7

9
7

C
F

 0
1
4

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll
 i
n

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 m

o
d

e
l

1
8
5

3
,3

1
6

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

36



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
F

 0
1
5

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

d
e
x
in

g
 S

c
a
n

n
in

g
 (

C
IS

) 

S
ta

ff
in

g
4
5

4
2
1

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,8

0
0

3
9
6

4
1
3

4
1
3

3
6
,9

3
7

S
a
v

in
g

s

C
F

 0
1
6

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2

-1
0
0

1
2
,0

3
3

C
F

 0
1
7

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6

-1
6
7

-1
4
8

2
,0

7
9

C
F

 0
1
8

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
-5

0
-5

0
3
8
1

C
F

 0
1
9

R
e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
a
rl

y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

-1
5
0

-1
5
0

1
,9

5
4

C
F

 0
2
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 t

o
 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
ff

e
r

-3
7
3

-2
0
0

1
,3

7
3

C
F

 0
2
1

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 I
I 
- 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 

T
ra

v
e
l 
T

ra
in

in
g

-5
6

-4
5

3
,3

8
3

C
F

 0
2
2

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 I
II
 -

 f
u

ll
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

ro
u
te

s

-4
0

-5
0
0

3
,3

8
3

C
F

 0
2
3

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

-1
2
5

-9
0

5
2
1

C
F

 0
2
4

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

s
e
m

i 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
H

o
n

e
y
p

o
t 

L
a
n

e

-4
1
0

6
2
5

C
F

 0
2
5

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v

in
g

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
-6

2
0

-7
0

1
8
,8

0
6

C
F

 0
2
6

S
a
v

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

n
e
x
io

n
s
, 
p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 

d
ru

g
s
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a
n

d
 c

li
n

ic
 i
n

 a
 b

o
x

-8
3
5

-2
5
5

2
,8

7
0

37



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
F

 0
2
7

R
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
R

e
s
p

it
e
 C

a
re

 f
o

r 

C
W

D
 

-1
0
0

1
,3

2
6

C
F

 0
2
8

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

fu
n

c
ti

o
n

s
 -

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

&
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-1
0
0

-5
0

1
5
0

C
F

 0
2
9

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

a
v

in
g

s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 

9
F

T
E

-2
6
0

1
,8

5
9

T
o

ta
l 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

a
v

in
g

s
-2

,8
7
6

-2
,0

6
8

0
0

5
0
,7

4
3

L
a
te

 S
a
v

in
g

s

C
F

 0
3
0

P
ri

c
e
s
 

-1
0
5

1
8
,8

0
6

C
F

 0
3
1

V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 0
.5

%
 

-6
2

1
2
,4

0
0

C
F

 0
3
2

A
g

e
n

c
y
 s

a
v

in
g

s
-6

6
9
,0

4
4

C
F

 0
3
3

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
-5

2
1
8
,8

0
6

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
-2

8
5

0
0

0
5
9
,0

5
6

N
e
t 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
-1

,3
6
1

-1
,6

7
2

4
1
3

4
1
3

1
4
6
,7

3
6

38



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
&

E
0
0
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

P
R

S
) 

- 
V

e
h

ic
le

 

e
a
rl

y
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

 p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
2
9
5

-2
9
5

2
,4

7
7

E
&

E
0
0
2

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 g
ro

w
th

1
6
3

-1
6
3

1
6
3

E
&

E
0
0
3

P
a
rk

in
g

 r
e
v

ie
w

 -
 2

0
 m

in
u
te

 f
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

2
6
1

3
0
7

-4
,4

4
8

E
&

E
0
0
4

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 c

le
a
n

in
g

 

fo
ll
o

w
in

g
 f

ro
m

 O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 2
 

(O
L

F
2
)

8
7

2
,0

4
6

E
&

E
0
0
5

C
C

T
V

 c
a
m

e
ra

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 d

e
c
li
n

e
7
0

5
6

4
5

E
&

E
0
0
6

C
R

C
 (

C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
/E

A
 

(E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
) 

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

C
R

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

9
3

3
9
2

E
&

E
0
0
7

W
e
lf

a
re

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 X

c
it

e
: 

1
0
8

1
0
8

E
&

E
0
0
8

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
W

L
W

A
) 

L
e
v

y
 

1
,2

1
8

6
8
9

6
7
7

7
0
8

7
,9

6
0

E
&

E
0
0
9

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
re

la
te

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 i
n

 m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri

c
e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

s
h

a
re

 

fo
r 

D
ry

 r
e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
2
5
6

-7
9
5

E
&

E
0
1
0

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
C

C
T

V
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 

7
1

4
9
4

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,5

5
2

6
0
8

7
3
3

7
5
3

8
,3

9
9

S
a
v

in
g

s

E
&

E
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

o
d

e
l 

(P
R

IS
M

) 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

 T
o
w

a
rd

s
 E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
-1

,5
0
0

-3
5
0

1
1
,2

7
8

E
&

E
0
1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
-1

0
0

-2
8
5

2
8
7

E
&

E
0
1
3

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 P
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
. 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 

a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

-2
4

E
&

E
0
1
4

S
L

A
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 -

 H
R

A
, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 O
th

e
r 

B
o

d
ie

s
. 
 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 r
e
v

is
e
d

 

S
L

A
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
-1

9
3
9
2

E
&

E
0
1
5

T
e
x
ti

le
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n

g
-1

0
-7

9
5

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

39



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

E
&

E
0
1
6

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 -

 F
le

x
ib

le
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

m
a
b

le
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t

-3
1

-5
8

3
9
2

E
&

E
0
1
7

In
c
re

a
s
e
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
n

ta
l 
fr

o
m

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
s
ta

te
-8

0
-9

8
8

E
&

E
0
1
8

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
e
v

e
l 
o

f 
fe

e
s
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
d

 f
o

r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 u
s
in

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 o

r 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a
c
il
it

ie
s
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

F
G

) 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l.
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
-7

5
0

3
8
8

E
&

E
0
1
9

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

m
e
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

-7
5

-7
5

3
8
8

E
&

E
0
2
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fr
e
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
-1

3
5

-4
5

-1
9
1

E
&

E
0
2
1

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

(2
0
1
2
-1

3
 r

e
v

e
rs

a
l)

-1
0
0

1
4
5

E
&

E
0
2
2

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 C

o
/F

M
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-2

5
1

2
,4

7
9

E
&

E
0
2
3

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 s
e
c
u

re
 u

ti
li
ty

 c
o

s
t 

s
a
v

in
g

s
. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

0
-1

2
2

-5
8

E
&

E
0
2
4

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 

o
ld

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

-1
8
0

3
2
8

E
&

E
0
2
5

U
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o

r 
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

c
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
. 

-1
0
0

1
,8

4
5

E
&

E
0
2
6

R
e
c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
li
ty

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 

to
 C

a
p

it
a

-8
3

1
,8

4
5

E
&

E
0
2
7

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-7

5
5
0
3

E
&

E
0
2
8

R
e
d

u
c
e
 h

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

 
-2

7
3

2
,3

7
3

E
&

E
0
2
9

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s

 p
o
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-2

5
1

3
8
1

40



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

E
&

E
0
3
0

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 -

 s
c
o

p
e
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e

-4
0

4
5
4

E
&

E
0
3
1

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

lo
s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
-1

5
0

-1
,0

5
5

E
&

E
0
3
2

P
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

-4
0

-1
,5

7
7

E
&

E
0
3
3

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 

A
c
t 

s
a
v

in
g

s
 (

li
n

k
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

S
L

A
 w

it
h

 

B
re

n
t 

tr
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
)

-5
0

-1
0
0

4
5
8

E
&

E
0
3
4

C
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 p
a
rk

in
g

 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
-3

0
-1

,0
5
5

E
&

E
0
3
5

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 

s
it

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
o

s
e
 o

f 
s
e
le

c
te

d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 

s
it

e
s

-1
0
0

E
&

E
0
3
6

S
o

ft
 M

a
rk

e
t 

te
s
ti

n
g

 o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
im

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
a
n

im
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

-6
0

-8
9

E
&

E
0
3
7

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
T

V
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

ro
o

m
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

ig
h

t
-3

0
4
9
4

E
&

E
0
3
8

R
e
v

ie
w

 B
re

n
t-

H
a
rr

o
w

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

c
o

n
s
o

rt
iu

m
 a

n
d

 /
 o

r 
p

ro
v

id
e
 T

ra
d

in
g

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 s
c
a
le

. 
-1

4
0

4
5
8

E
&

E
0
3
9

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
 m

a
x
im

is
a
ti

o
n

 -
 F

le
e
t 

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
: 

E
x
p

lo
re

 a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

P
R

S
 f

le
e
t

-2
5

E
&

E
0
4
0

R
e
tu

rn
in

g
 P

a
rk

s
 t

o
 O

p
e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

-3
5
0

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
4
1

G
ra

s
s
 V

e
rg

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

-1
6
5

E
&

E
0
4
2

G
ra

ff
it

i 
re

m
o

v
a
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 s

c
o

p
e

-5
2

2
,0

4
6

E
&

E
0
4
3

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

A
n

n
u

a
li
s
e
d

 h
o

u
rs

-8
0

-8
1

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
4
4

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

o
 a

 6
 w

e
e
k
ly

. 
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

-8
2

3
3
0

E
&

E
0
4
5

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
o

m
e
 n

o
n

 t
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

s
w

e
e
p

e
rs

-1
1
6

3
3
0

E
&

E
0
4
6

R
e
v

ie
w

 f
in

e
 t

u
rf

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
-2

9

E
&

E
0
4
7

R
e
v

ie
w

 l
e
v

e
l 
o

f 
P

a
rk

s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

-3
5

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
4
8

R
e
v

ie
w

 N
H

S
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

c
li
n

ic
a
l 

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
-1

2
3
5

41



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

E
&

E
0
4
9

R
e
v

ie
w

 o
n

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
u

to
m

a
te

d
 p

u
b

li
c
 

c
o

n
v

e
n

ie
n

c
e
s

-8
0

6
5

E
&

E
0
5
0

R
e
v

ie
w

 p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 o

p
e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

lo
c
k
in

g
-7

0
1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
5
1

R
e
v

ie
w

 s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

d
o

g
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

-3
5

1
,1

3
7

E
&

E
0
5
2

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ro
u

n
d

s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
, 
re

v
ie

w
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v

e
l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0
1
3

-5
7

0

E
&

E
0
5
2

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 

d
e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

-2
5

4
1

E
&

E
0
5
4

R
e
v

ie
w

 T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

-2
2
0

5
2
6

E
&

E
0
5
5

P
R

IS
M

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 (

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 

re
v

e
rs

a
l)

-2
0
0

2
8
7

E
&

E
0
5
6

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

s
u

m
a
b

le
s
  

-1
0
0

2
8
7

E
&

E
0
5
7

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 R
e
v

ie
w

-3
5
0

2
,4

7
7

E
&

E
0
5
8

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 o
th

e
rs

-1
4
0

-2
7
3

1
1
,6

8
4

E
&

E
0
5
9

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

e
e
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 f

ro
m

 c
e
n

tr
a
l 
g

o
v

e
rn

m
e
n

t
-2

9
0

E
&

E
0
6
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a
l 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

li
c
y
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e
 f

o
r 

fa
s
t 

tr
a
c
k
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 p
re

-a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

a
d
v
ic

e
.

-1
5

-3
3

E
&

E
0
6
1

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
fr

o
m

 M
a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-2
5

0

E
&

E
0
6
2

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a
v

in
g

s
 o

n
 N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

-6
3
8
2

E
&

E
0
6
3

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
  
P

o
s
t 

D
e
le

ti
o

n
s
  

-1
,0

8
3

5
7
5

E
&

E
0
6
4

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 C

o
n

s
u

m
a
b

le
s
  

-9
3

-5
9
0

E
&

E
0
6
5

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
- 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

s
a
v

in
g

s
-7

6
1
1
,6

8
4

E
&

E
0
6
6

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

ta
ff

 -
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 u
s
a
g

e
-1

6
0

1
8
,3

8
1

E
&

E
0
6
7

S
ta

ff
in

g
 -

 V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

5
0

1
8
,3

8
1

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

a
v

in
g

s
-7

,4
9
0

-2
,0

2
2

-5
8

0

42



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

N
e
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-4
,9

3
8

-1
,4

1
4

6
7
5

7
5
3

43



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d

u
lt

s

C
H

W
0
0
1

D
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 G
ro

w
th

. 
 C

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 u
s
e
rs

2
,8

0
0

2
,6

0
0

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

2
9
,2

1
6

  
 

C
H

W
0
0
2

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

5
0

3
,7

9
2

  
  
 

C
H

W
0
0
3

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
c
e
. 
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 f

e
e
s

1
0

6
2
2

  
  
  
  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

H
G

F
)

C
H

W
0
0
4

H
o

m
e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 [

1
0
0
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 &

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

&
B

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
(H

B
) 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
).

  
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
2
-

1
3
 M

T
F

S
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
b
s
id

y 
fo

r 

B
&

B
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 m
a
te

ri
a
lis

e
.

-2
5
0

-2
5
0

C
H

W
0
0
5

H
o

m
e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
. 

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

f 

w
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 

1
,0

0
0

-5
0
0

C
H

W
0
0
6

In
v

e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v

e
 i
n

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s
in

g
 (

P
S

L
) 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 m

e
d
iu

m
 

te
rm

 l
e
a
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 B

&
B

 s
h
o
w

n
 a

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
lo

w
.

2
8
9

-2
8
9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re

C
H

W
0
0
7

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v

ie
w

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-1

5
0

6
4
3

C
H

W
0
0
8

L
o

n
d

o
n

 Y
o

u
th

 G
a
m

e
s

8
1
2

C
H

W
0
0
9

U
n

d
e
r 

O
n

e
 S

k
y

2
5

1
0
5

C
H

W
0
1
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

w
e
lf

a
re

 a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

9
0

-9
0

7
0
9

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 T

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 c
o

s
ts

1
0
0

-1
0
0

8
0
0

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

3
,9

7
2

1
,3

7
1

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

S
a
v

in
g

s

A
d

u
lt

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
2

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

-1
0
0

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
1
3

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

5
0

-1
0
0

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
1
4

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

H
o

m
e
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

-9
0
0

6
,5

1
5

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

2
,8

7
3

44



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
H

W
0
1
5

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
c
e
 (

W
L

A
) 

J
o

in
t 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

C
re

d
it

io
n

 (
A

P
C

) 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

C
a
re

-1
5
0

-1
5
0

9
,8

1
9

C
H

W
0
1
6

C
e
n

tr
a
l 
N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (
C

N
W

L
):

 M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s

-1
0
0

3
,7

9
2

C
H

W
0
1
7

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
. 

R
e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

g
ro

w
th

-1
0
0

C
H

W
0
1
8

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
-2

0
0

C
H

W
0
1
9

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v

ie
w

. 
 O

n
ly

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

.

-1
,5

5
0

-3
,0

0
0

C
H

W
0
2
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 B

a
s
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
t 
p
la

c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

.

7
7
5

1
,5

0
0

C
H

W
0
2
1

D
a
y
 C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v

ie
w

-3
0
0

-3
0
0

2
,2

1
0

C
H

W
0
2
2

P
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

[c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
].

  
M

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 g

re
a
te

r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
s
t.

-1
,0

0
0

C
H

W
0
2
3

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

ta
ff

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
.

-3
0
0

C
H

W
0
2
4

S
h

a
re

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
/ 
o

r 
a
g

g
re

g
a
te

 w
it

h
in

 C
o

u
n

c
il
. 
 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
 

-1
0
4

C
H

W
0
2
5

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 o
f 

J
o

in
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y 

b
e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

-9
3

C
H

W
0
2
6

R
e
a
b

le
m

e
n

t.
  
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

-9
0
0

6
,8

8
9

-1
,1

1
1

45



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
H

W
0
2
7

C
e
s
s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 C
lu

b
s

-7
5

1
,4

4
2

C
H

W
0
2
8

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 -
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

-1
,3

2
4

C
H

W
0
2
9

S
e
c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 

P
C

T
/C

C
G

 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

-5
0
0

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
3
0

D
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 G

re
e
n

v
ie

w
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

-2
3
0

6
3
7

C
H

W
0
3
1

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
y
. 

S
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 
to

 b
e
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
.

-2
3
0

2
2
9

C
H

W
0
3
2

M
e
a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e
ls

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
.

-1
9
0

C
H

W
0
3
3

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

a
re

. 
 C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

jo
in

tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
.

-8
0
0

C
H

W
0
3
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-6

9
-2

,2
0
6

C
H

W
0
3
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-7
3

-2
,2

0
6

C
H

W
0
3
6

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

-1
9
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

H
G

F
)

C
H

W
0
3
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

s
 -

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

In
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

-2
5

C
H

W
0
3
8

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 R

e
v

ie
w

. 
 S

a
v
in

g
 i
n
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

-7
0

C
H

W
0
3
9

R
e
a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

G
F

) 

to
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 
- 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s

-2
1
5

3
,8

9
7

C
H

W
0
4
0

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
v

a
c
a
n

t 
E

n
a
b

li
n

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
o

s
t

-3
6

2
2
4

C
H

W
0
4
1

In
v

e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v

e
 -

 c
a
s
h

 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v

e
s

. 
 U

s
e
d
 t
o
 f

re
e
 u

p
 

H
R

A
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t.
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f

ro
m

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 B

&
B

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

-4
8

-4
8

C
H

W
0
4
2

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 P

S
L

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

. 
 B

&
B

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

p
e
n
d
 t
o
 s

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.

-2
4
0

C
H

W
0
4
3

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

 a
t 

T
ra

v
e
ll
e
rs

 S
it

e
-1

0
1
3

C
H

W
0
4
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-1

6

C
H

W
0
4
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-1
7

C
H

W
0
4
6

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

-6
3
,8

9
7

3
,8

9
7

2
,8

7
3

46



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

C
H

W
0
4
7

E
m

p
ty

 H
o

m
e
s
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
b
ri
n
g
in

g
 e

m
p
ty

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
.

-3
0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re

C
H

W
0
4
8

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n

-4
8

-1
5

1
6
3

C
H

W
0
4
9

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 2
 -

re
v

e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

in
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 2
0
1
2
-1

3

-1
5
0

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 2
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

fi
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 p

ro
fi
t 
s
h
a
re

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 u
s
e
 o

f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

-2
5

-7
1

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
1

L
ib

ra
ry

 V
o

lu
n

te
e
rs

. 
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

.
-4

0

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
2

C
o

m
b

in
e
 G

a
y
to

n
 &

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s

-7
5

1
,1

8
4

C
H

W
0
5
3

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v

ie
w

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 -

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

e
n

d
e
r 

w
it

h
 E

a
li
n

g
 &

 B
re

n
t

-2
0
0

-4
0
0

9
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0
5
4

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
-4

0
-7

7

C
H

W
0
5
5

R
e
d

u
c
e
 A

d
u

lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 S
u

b
s
id

y
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 g

ra
n
t.

-7
3

-5
0

1
3
6

C
H

W
0
5
6

R
e
d

u
c
e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 t

o
 h

a
rr

o
w

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

u
s
ic

ia
n

s
 

-2
8

-1
0

5
8

C
H

W
0
5
7

S
h

a
re

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

-6
3

6
3

C
H

W
0
5
8

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 H
a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 &

 B
a
n

n
is

te
r 

s
ta

d
iu

m
. 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

-1
1
7

-2
3
8

1
,1

4
2

C
H

W
0
5
9

R
e
v

ie
w

 m
a
in

 g
ra

n
ts

 b
u

d
g

e
t

-6
9

7
0
9

C
H

W
0
6
0

R
e
d

u
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
g

ra
n

ts
-4

0
1
0
4

C
H

W
0
6
1

O
n

e
 o

ff
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 

s
e
c
to

r

-4
0

7
0
9

C
H

W
0
6
2

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

e
s
ti

v
a
ls

-4
8

1
0
5

C
H

W
0
6
3

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
-2

5
5
,1

2
3

C
H

W
0
6
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

-2
7

2
4

C
H

W
0
6
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 a
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

-1
1

9
,3

8
5

47



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
6
6

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 (

D
P

H
) 

s
a
la

ry
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 g

ra
n

t

-5
0

8
0
0

C
H

W
0
6
7

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 f

ro
m

 B
a
rn

e
t/

H
a
rr

o
w

 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
. 

C
h
a
rg

e
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 g

ra
n
t.

-2
5
0

8
0
0

C
H

W
0
6
8

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

-1
0
0

8
0
0

U
n

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 (

n
o

m
in

a
ll
y
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

)

C
H

W
0
6
9

L
a
te

 s
a
v

in
g

s
 -

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
-1

6
7

T
o

ta
l 
C

H
W

 S
a
v

in
g

s
-6

,8
3
4

-7
,6

5
3

0
0

N
e
t 

C
H

W
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-2
,8

6
2

-6
,2

8
2

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

48



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
E

S
0
0
1

W
e
b
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 l
ic

e
n
c
e
s

1
0

6
5
8

R
E

S
0
0
2

IT
 &

 t
e
x
t 

a
le

rt
s
. 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 a
n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 

a
le

rt
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 b
y 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

.

5
0

6
5
8

R
E

S
0
0
3

H
e
lp

li
n

e
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
. 

R
e
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
.

8
0

5
9
7

R
E

S
0
0
4

C
a
rd

 P
a
y
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
. 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

c
a
rd

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

9
2

7
5
1

IT
 /
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 (

P
M

O
)

R
E

S
0
0
5

B
T

P
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

In
d

e
x
a
ti

o
n

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
2
%

.

6
0

3
0

1
1
,6

5
1

R
E

S
0
0
6

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 c
a
p

it
a
l 
- 

 M
ic

ro
s
o

ft
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

li
c
e
n

c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 m
o

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 t
h

a
n

 b
u

y
in

g
. 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
lic

e
n
c
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

c
h
e
a
p
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

lic
e
n
c
e
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 

c
a
p
it
a
l

8
8

1
1
,6

5
1

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

R
E

S
0
0
7

L
o

c
a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
 L

ic
e
n

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 

R
u

n
n

in
g

 C
o

s
ts

1
8

1
8

R
E

S
0
0
8

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 D
A

T
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 d
u

e
 t

o
 P

C
T

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 (

re
v

e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

-2
5

0

R
E

S
0
0
9

E
x
p

e
ri

a
n

 &
 L

IS
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
ta

 

in
to

 L
IS

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 

E
x
p
e
ri
a
n
 

p
ro

fi
le

s
.

3
2
2

-2
5

1
7

R
E

S
0
1
0

R
e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 P

a
n

e
l.
  

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

.

1
0

-1
0

1
4

H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(H

R
D

)

R
E

S
0
1
1

C
a
s
h

ie
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
s
il
ie

n
c
e
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
.

5
0

7
5
1

R
E

S
0
1
2

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
2
0

2
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

49



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
1
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 P
a
y
ro

ll
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
u
to

 e
n
ro

lm
e
n
t.

3
5

5
4
5

R
E

S
0
1
4

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

(W
L

W
A

) 
S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 t

o
 P

a
y
ro

ll
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 S

L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 

c
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

2
0

1
5

1
5

L
e
g

a
l 
a
n

d
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0
1
5

L
e
g

a
l 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
il
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 5
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

1
2
0

1
,9

6
4

R
E

S
0
1
6

In
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

1
0
0

-1
0
0

1
0
0

F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0
1
7

F
in

a
n

c
e
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t.

 O
n
e
 o

ff
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

2
0
0

-2
0
0

2
0
0

R
E

S
0
1
8

F
in

a
n

c
e
 -

 E
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 W

L
W

A
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

W
a
s
te

 c
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

2
3

2
7

2
7

R
E

S
0
1
9

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

S
L
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
u
s
in

g
 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

2
0

-1
3
2

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

R
E

S
0
1
8

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 -

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 

e
n

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 W

L
W

A
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

L
A

 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 c
e
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 

u
s
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

1
7

4
0
9

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts

R
E

S
0
1
9

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 (

D
W

P
) 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 G
ra

n
t.

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d
it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 

b
y 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

2
5
0

5
0
0

1
,6

6
0

50



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
2
0

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 O

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

In
c
o

m
e
 S

tr
e
a
m

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d
it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 

2
0
0

3
2
0

1
1
0

6
3
0

R
E

S
0
2
1

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
S

ta
ff

-R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 T

a
x
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 (
C

T
S

) 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 p
a
id

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
.

1
5
0

1
,6

6
0

R
E

S
0
2
2

H
a
rr

o
w

 H
E

L
P

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

H
a
rd

s
h
ip

 f
u
n
d
 t
o
 

h
e
lp

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

W
e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
.

1
0
0

4
5
7

R
E

S
0
2
3

P
u

b
li
c
 F

in
a
n

c
e
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
 (

P
F

I)
  
G

ra
n

t 

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

. 
E

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 P

F
I 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

3
8

4
3

4
3

R
E

S
0
2
4

D
W

P
 H

B
 R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 A
d

m
in

 G
ra

n
t

2
9
8

1
1
9

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0
2
5

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a
li
s
e
d

 C
T

B
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 &
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
re

v
e
rs

a
l 
o

f 
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

-1
0
0

0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

R
E

S
0
2
5

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 r

e
s
to

re
 

s
iz

e
 o

f 
te

a
m

 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2

1
4
0

1
,2

3
8

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,6

1
7

3
9
6

7
9
5

1
1
0

S
a
v

in
g

s

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
E

S
0
2
5

M
o

v
e
 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
s
 o

n
li
n

e
 w

it
h

 f
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 

(F
2
F

) 
b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 
o

n
ly

 o
n

 f
ix

e
d

 d
a
y
s
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
 s

a
v
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 o

n
lin

e
.

-9
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
2
6

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
ta

ff
 h

o
u

rs
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 f

e
w

e
r 

fu
ll
 t

im
e
 p

o
s
ts

-6
0

5
,4

7
5

51



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
2
7

U
s
e
 o

f 
A

rt
if

ic
ia

l 
In

te
ll
ig

e
n

c
e
 t

o
 d

iv
e
rt

 

s
w

it
c
h

b
o

a
rd

 c
a
ll
s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
, 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
 w

it
h
 f

u
ll 

ye
a
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
-1

5

-6
0

-6
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
2
8

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
R

e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll
 d

a
y
 

c
o

v
e
r.

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

-1
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
2
9

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

n
e
l 
s
h

if
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

o
ll
 o

u
t 

o
f 

M
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t.
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e
lf
 s

e
rv

e
 v

ia
 

M
H

A
, 
w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 I
V

R

-6
0

-6
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
3
0

C
lo

s
e
 F

2
F

 a
n

d
 T

e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 C

h
a
n

n
e
ls

 f
o

r 

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
. 
O

v
e
r 

a
 3

 y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 c

lo
s
e
 f

a
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
in

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 f
o
r 

P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

ig
ra

te
 

to
 I
n
te

rn
e
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t.

-3
0

-7
0

-5
0

5
,4

7
5

R
E

S
0
3
1

R
e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 t
o
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

e
 

a
re

a
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 F

2
F

 (
fa

c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
) 

a
d
v
ic

e

-5
0

-1
0
0

-1
9
0

-1
0
0

5
,4

7
5

IT
 /
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 (

P
M

O
) 

R
E

S
0
3
2

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

-4
8

4
0
5

R
E

S
0
3
3

D
a
ta

 c
e
n

tr
e
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
t 

th
e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e
n

tr
e
. 

S
a
v
in

g
 o

n
 I
T

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 n
o
t 
m

o
v
in

g
 d

a
ta

 

c
e
n
tr

e
 t
o
 a

 r
e
m

o
te

 s
it
e
.

-2
5
0

1
1
,6

5
1

R
E

S
0
3
4

R
e
c
h

a
rg

e
 u

ti
li
ty

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
ro

o
m

 

to
 C

a
p

it
a
. 

-9
5

1
1
,6

5
1

R
E

S
0
3
5

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 T
e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 C

o
s
ts

 u
ti

li
s
in

g
 

S
IP

 T
e
le

p
h
o
n
y 

m
o
v
e
d
 a

 c
h
e
a
p
e
r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
.

-2
0
0

1
5
3

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

52



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
3
6

M
e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

e
a
m

 

a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

e
a
m

, 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
. 

M
e
rg

in
g
 o

f 
tw

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e
 s

in
g
le

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

m
o
d
e
l 
(n

e
x
t 
s
a
v
in

g
).

 

-9
3

1
,3

8
1

R
E

S
0
3
7

D
e
le

te
 p

o
s
t 

o
f 

S
e
n

io
r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
S

IM
S

. 

S
ta

ff
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
a
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

-6
0

4
8
7

R
E

S
0
3
8

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 &

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
 a

n
d

 N
e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 M

o
d

e
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
. 
A

g
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

-1
3
2

-9
7

1
,3

8
1

R
E

S
0
3
9

M
e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

in
to

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

e
a
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

ff
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
F

T
E

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 l
e
a
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fr
o
m

 0
1
/0

4
/1

3

-4
0

6
5
6

R
E

S
0
4
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 -

 r
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ri

c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e
a
rs

 

a
g

re
e
d

 w
it

h
 W

e
s
tc

o
.

-4
6

-4
6

6
5
6

H
R

D

R
E

S
0
4
1

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

. 
P

o
s
t 

d
e
le

ti
o
n
.

-6
5

6
2
2

R
E

S
0
4
2

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 p

o
s
ts

. 
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
 

p
o
s
ts

.

-7
5

-7
5

6
2
2

53



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
4
3

R
e
-n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

(L
&

D
) 

 m
a
n

a
g

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

fe
e
s

-3
8

6
3

R
E

S
0
4
4

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 (

T
U

) 
fa

c
il
it

y
 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
.

-3
0

5
0

R
E

S
0
4
5

P
ri

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

S
a
v

in
g

s
. 
L
e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

p
ri
n
te

rs
 a

n
d
 p

h
o
c
o
p
ie

rs
 a

t 
lo

w
e
r 

c
o
s
t.

-3
5
0

-1
0
0

4
9
6

R
E

S
0
4
6

C
e
s
s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

A
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 i
n
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 a
n
d
 p

a
p
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

te
rn

e
t 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 o

w
n
 s

it
e

-2
5

-7
5

-2
5

R
is

k
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

N
T

I-
F

R
A

U
D

 T
E

A
M

R
E

S
0
4
7

P
ro

c
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

- 
p

u
rs

u
e
 r

e
c
o

v
e
ri

e
s
 

o
f 

fr
a
u

d
u

le
n

t 
g

a
in

s
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 

B
re

n
t,

 p
lu

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o

m
e
 r

e
c
o

v
e
ry

. 
 

-2
0

-1
9

4
4
7

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

R
E

S
0
4
8

R
e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
-s

o
u

rc
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e
t.

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

u
d
it
.

-1
6

3
5

R
E

S
0
4
9

D
e
le

te
 v

a
c
a
n

t 
p

o
s
t 

in
 a

u
d

it
-3

0
2
2
0

R
E

S
0
5
0

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
E

S
0
5
1

D
e
le

te
 2

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

ty
.

-8
2

7
4

C
IV

IL
 C

O
N

T
IN

G
E

N
C

IE
S

 T
E

A
M

R
E

S
0
5
2

J
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

S
h
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
.

-3
5

1
3
0

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
E

S
0
5
3

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 b
ro

k
e
r 

fe
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 i
n

-

h
o

u
s
e
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 o

n
 

th
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s

-2
-3

2
3

54



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
5
4

F
u

tu
re

 t
ra

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
. 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
.

-2
5

-5
4
0

R
E

S
0
5
5

P
h

a
s
e
 2

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
re

d
u

c
e
d

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

t 

p
o

s
t 

fr
o

m
 c

la
im

s
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
to

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 /
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

L
E

A
N

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

S
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

-2
0

8
2

R
E

S
0
5
6

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

1
F

T
E

 A
n

ti
 F

ra
u

d
 I
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
to

r 

P
o

s
t

-5
0

2
5
7

R
E

S
0
5
7

R
e
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
. 

R
e
le

t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

-7
0

1
7
7

R
E

S
0
5
8

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e

. 
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
in

 2
0
1
3
.

-3
0

-3
0

1
7

R
E

S
0
5
9

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 C

la
im

s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 

c
o
s
t 
o
f 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

la
im

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y 

b
e
tt
e
r 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

-3
0

-7
0

6
2
0

R
E

S
0
6
0

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

la
im

s
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y 

b
e
tt
e
r 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

-1
0
0

6
2
0

R
E

S
0
6
1

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p

o
s
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

-1
1
8

0

L
E

G
A

L
 A

N
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Le
g

a
l 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

R
E

S
0
6
2

L
e
g

a
l 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-2
8

7
0

R
E

S
0
6
3

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t.

-7
5

1
,9

6
4

R
E

S
0
6
4

E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
g

a
l 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 S

h
a
re

d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 
E

x
p
a
n
d
 L

e
g
a
l 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r.

 

-1
0
0

-1
0
0

-1
0
0

R
E

S
0
6
5

R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 

R
E

S
0
6
6

S
h

a
re

/r
e
d

u
c
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 .
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-7
5

1
,9

6
4

55



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
6
7

E
le

ct
io

n
s

R
E

S
0
6
8

E
-c

a
n

v
a
s
s
 P

ro
je

c
t.

 R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
a
n
v
a
s
.

-2
0

-2
0

1
2
9

R
E

S
0
6
9

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 F

o
rm

a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
.

-3
0

-7
0

2
0
6

R
E

S
0
7
0

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 i
n

 M
a
y
o

r'
s
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-2
6

3
8

R
E

S
0
7
1

S
c
a
le

d
 B

a
c
k
 C

o
u

n
c
il
lo

r 
In

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

o
n

 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
.

-5
0

0

R
E

S
0
7
2

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 R

e
g

is
tr

a
rs

 F
e
e
 I
n

c
o

m
e
 T

a
rg

e
t.

 

In
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
.

5
0

-1
0
0

-5
4

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0
7
3

F
in

a
n

c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
 R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
ts

.
-3

0
0

1
,7

9
3

R
E

S
0
7
4

A
u

d
it

 f
e
e
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 
-1

6
0

2
7
0

R
E

S
0
7
5

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 g

ra
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 –

 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 l
e
v

y

-7
4

2
6
4

R
E

S
0
7
6

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 

in
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

-9
3
9

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts

R
E

S
0
7
7

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 -

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x
 a

n
d

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

o
n

 D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 

R
a
te

s
 (

N
N

D
R

)

-6
0

8
0
4

R
E

S
0
7
8

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
4
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts

-1
4
0

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0
7
9

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
1
 p

o
s
t 

in
 P

a
rk

in
g

 B
a
c
k
 O

ff
ic

e
-2

5
3
0
3

R
E

S
0
8
0

S
ta

ff
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 D

W
P

 A
d

m
in

 

g
ra

n
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

-4
8

56



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

R
E

S
0
8
1

C
o

n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 T
ra

v
e
l 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 (

T
F

L
) 

g
ra

n
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

v
y
 c

o
s
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
.

-1
0
5

-1
0
2

9
,6

6
2

R
E

S
0
8
2

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
-4

0
8
0
4

R
E

S
0
8
3

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 m

o
v

e
s
 t

o
 D

W
P

. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t
o
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d
it
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

-1
2
5

-1
4
5

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0
8
4

W
it

h
d

ra
w

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 R
a
te

 R
e
li
e
f 

fr
o

m
 

C
h

a
ri

ty
 S

h
o

p
s
 i
n

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 i
n

 2
0
1
4
-

1
5

-2
5

-5
0

5
0

R
E

S
0
8
5

F
u

n
d

in
g

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

R
e
li
e
f 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 G
ra

n
t.

 

-8
5

0

R
E

S
0
8
6

R
e
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e
 i
s
s
u

in
g

 o
f 

ta
x
i 
c
a
rd

s
 t

o
 o

n
ly

 

th
a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 T

F
L

 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

.

-2
0
0

0

R
E

S
0
8
7

C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 n

o
t 

d
e
li
v

e
re

d
 i
n

 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

ro
s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

in
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
.

2
1
5

0

L
a
te

 S
a
v

in
g

s

R
E

S
0
8
8

V
a
c
a
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

-1
4
8

4
0
,8

7
9

R
E

S
0
8
9

A
g

e
n

c
y
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
r.

-1
5
7

4
0
,8

7
9

R
E

S
0
9
0

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t.
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

-2
0
5

1
6
,8

5
0

R
E

S
0
9
1

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

-8
6

1
6
,8

5
0

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

a
v

in
g

s
-4

,5
0
4

-1
,9

6
9

-5
2
0

-3
3
5

57



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
2

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
-1

7

(A
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 /
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1
3
)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1
3
-1

4
2
0
1
4
-1

5
2
0
1
5
-1

6
2
0
1
6
-1

7

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 

N
e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

T
F

S

N
e
t 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-2
,8

8
7

-1
,5

7
3

2
7
5

-2
2
5

58



M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

-1
7

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 M
T

F
S

 f
o

r 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
a

p
p

ro
v

a
l 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
-f

re
s

h
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s

C
F

 0
2

5
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c

e
m

e
n

ts
3

0
0

0
0

1
8

,8
0

6

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

C
F

 0
0

1
 1

4
/1

5
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
1

2
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

. 
 G

ro
w

th
 o

f 
£

5
0

0
k
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 L

e
a

d
e

r 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
.

5
0

0
0

0
2

5
4

2

C
F

 0
0

2
 1

4
/1

5
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

3
0

0
0

0
3

3
7

9

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
1

,1
0

0
0

0

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s

E
&

E
0

1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

1
4

0
0

0
2

8
7

E
&

E
0

1
9

E
s

ta
b

li
s

h
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 H

o
m

e
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c

y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

t
1

5
0

0

0
3

8
8

E
&

E
0

2
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
fr

e
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
1

8
0

0
0

-1
9

1

E
&

E
0

2
5

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s

 o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
in

im
u

m
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 f
o

r 
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
. 

1
0

0
0

0
1

,8
4

5

E
&

E
0

3
1

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

s
s

 m
a

k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s

1
5

0
0

0
-1

,0
5

5

E
&

E
0

3
5

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

ff
-s

tr
e

e
t 

c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 s
it

e
s

 a
n

d
 d

is
p

o
s

e
 o

f 
s

e
le

c
te

d
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
 s

it
e

s
1

0
0

0
0

-1
,0

4
6

E
&

E
0

4
0

R
e

tu
rn

in
g

 P
a

rk
s

 t
o

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c

e
2

7
5

0
1

,1
3

7

E
&

E
0

5
0

 /
 5

1

R
e

v
ie

w
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
e

m
e

te
ri

e
s

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 l

o
c

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c

ia
li

s
t 

d
o

g
 w

a
s

te
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
1

0
5

0

0
1

,1
3

7

E
&

E
0

5
9

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
e

e
s

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 f

ro
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
2

9
0

0
0

3
3

3

R
e

 -
 p

ro
fi

le
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s

E
&

E
0

1
1

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
a

lm
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

o
d

e
l 

(P
R

IS
M

) 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

 T
o

w
a

rd
s
 E

x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
3

7
5

-3
7

5

0
2

,4
7

7

E
&

E
0

4
3

G
ro

u
n

d
s

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
: 

A
n

n
u

a
li

s
e

d
 h

o
u

rs
8

1
-8

1
0

1
,1

3
7

A
g

re
e

d
 g

ro
w

th
 n

o
 l

o
n

g
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

d

E
&

E
0

0
3

P
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

 -
 2

0
 m

in
u

te
 f

re
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
-5

6
8

0
0

-4
,4

4
8

E
&

E
0

0
5

C
C

T
V

 c
a

m
e

ra
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 d

e
c

li
n

e
-7

0
1

4
1

1

E
&

E
0

0
6

C
R

C
 (

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t)

/E
A

 (
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c

y
) 

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 i

n
 c

o
s

t 
o

f 

C
R

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

-8
8

0

0
3

9
2

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

59



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

E
&

E
 0

0
1

 1
4

/1
5

R
e

c
y

c
li

n
g

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 T
e

a
m

 -
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
, 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
 f

u
lly

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
ra

n
d

e
d

 

u
n

if
o

rm
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 r
e

fu
s
e

 c
re

w
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 
s
c
e

n
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

a
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
. 

A
 t

e
a

m
 o

f 
th

re
e

 p
lu

s
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 e

tc
.-

 

£
1

2
5

,0
0

0
. 

M
a

y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 i
f 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 d
iv

e
rt

 1
,0

0
0

 t
o

n
n

e
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 i
n

to
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

s
tr

e
a

m
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

. 
 A

 s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 b
o

o
s
t 

o
u

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
A

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 c

a
n

 m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 5
0

%
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

, 
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 i
n

 

th
e

 l
o

n
g

 r
u

n
 i
f 

w
a

s
te

 i
s
 d

iv
e

rt
e

d
 f

ro
m

 l
a

n
d

fi
ll.

1
2

5
0

0
1

4
7

E
&

E
 0

0
2

 1
4

/1
5

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 B

e
a

t 
S

w
e

e
p

in
g

 -
 R

e
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

 

s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 e

x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 l
it
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

a
y
n

e
rs

 L
a

n
e

, 
E

d
g

w
a

re
, 

S
o

u
th

 H
a

rr
o

w
 e

tc
) 

a
n

d
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

id
e

 r
a

p
id

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
e

a
m

 a
t 

w
e

e
k
e

n
d

. 
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
h

ig
h

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 v
it
a

lit
y
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

lit
te

r 
(N

I 
1

9
5

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

ip
p

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

p
u

b
lic

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

 l
it
te

ri
n

g
. 

 W
e

e
k
e

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 

e
a

s
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 M

o
n

d
a

y
 m

o
rn

in
g

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 c
a

tc
h

 u
p

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 s

o
 g

re
a

t.
  

1
5

0
0

0
2

3
0

3

E
&

E
 0

0
3

 1
4

/1
5

S
tr

e
e

t 
c

le
a

n
s

in
g

 B
li

tz
 T

e
a

m
 -

 T
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
re

m
o

v
a

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri
m

e
, 

d
e

ta
il 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
h

o
t 

s
p

o
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

o
rk

 

1
2

5
0

0
1

6
9

E
&

E
 0

0
4

 1
4

/1
5

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 (

N
C

) 
- 

R
e

s
to

c
k
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 N
C

 a
p

p
a

re
l,
 r

e
-e

n
g

a
g

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
. 

 I
n

it
ia

te
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 

tr
a

in
in

g
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 r
e

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

o
rk

 
1

0
0

0
0

0

E
&

E
 0

0
5

 1
4

/1
5

P
a

rk
s

/G
ro

u
n

d
s

 B
li

tz
 T

e
a

m
 -

 T
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 a
n

d
 U

s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
, 

re
m

o
v
a

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri
m

e
, 

d
e

ta
il 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

h
o

t 
s
p

o
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 

a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
w

o
rk

.
1

2
5

0
0

1
7

6
2

E
&

E
 0

0
6

 1
4

/1
5

E
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

 C
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
d

s
 i
n

 s
h

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 u
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
s
; 

a
n

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

te
p

 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

-e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 r
e

g
im

e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

le
ra

te
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
o

ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
. 

1
0

0
0

0
3

3
3

60



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

E
&

E
 0

0
7

 1
4

/1
5

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

tr
a

n
s

it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
ro

le
s

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 -

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
, 

it
 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 s

o
m

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

ro
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 

m
e

t.
1

3
0

0
0

1
8

5
4

3

S
u

b
s

ti
tu

te
 S

a
v

in
g

s

E
&

E
 0

0
8

 1
4

/1
5

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

a
li

g
n

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
P

a
rk

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 (
In

c
o

m
e

 r
e

-a
li

g
n

m
e

n
t,

  
n

o
 s

ta
ff

 i
m

p
a

c
t)

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 f

o
r 

tr
a

ff
ic

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
a

s
o

n
s

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 r
e

c
o

v
e

re
d

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 f

ig
u

re
. 

 T
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 

ra
te

 o
f 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 s
o

 f
a

r.
  

T
o

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
. 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
:

1
. 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
re

 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
. 

 

2
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
le

m
e

n
t 

w
e

a
th

e
r,

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 l
e

g
a

l 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

 

3
. 

P
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

-7
0

0
0

0

-4
,4

4
8

E
&

E
 0

0
9

 1
4

/1
5

T
e

x
ti

le
s

 R
e

c
y

c
li

n
g

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
e

x
ti
le

s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

-1
0

0
0

4
5

0

E
&

E
 0

1
0

 1
4

/1
5

In
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e

-3
0

0
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

1
,0

6
5

-4
4

2
1

1

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s

A
d

u
lt

s
 

C
H

W
0

1
5

W
e

s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll

ia
n

c
e

 (
W

L
A

) 
J

o
in

t 
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t:

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 P

ro
v

id
e

r 
C

re
d

it
io

n
 (

A
P

C
) 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

a
re

5
0

0
0

9
,8

1
9

C
H

W
0

2
9

S
e

c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 P
C

T
/C

C
G

 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

5
0

0
0

0
2

,2
0

6

C
H

W
0

3
3

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a

re
. 

 C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
jo

in
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

.
8

0
0

0
0

C
H

W
0

3
4

L
a

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 v
a

c
a

n
c

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6

9
0

0

C
H

W
0

3
5

L
a

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y

 c
o

s
ts

7
3

0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

C
H

W
0

5
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 2
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

fi
n

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

s
h

a
re

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

rt
 

te
rm

 u
s
e

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 b
y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

1
4

1
-1

8
0

5
,3

8
5

C
H

W
0

5
4

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
1

3
9

0
0

C
H

W
0

5
7

S
h

a
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 C
o

h
e

s
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s

 C
o

u
n

c
il

6
3

0
0

6
3

C
H

W
0

5
8

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li

s
a

ti
o

n
 H

a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,

 A
rt

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
M

u
s

e
u

m
 &

 B
a

n
n

is
te

r 
s

ta
d

iu
m

. 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
e

t 
u

p
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 d
e

liv
e

ra
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
.

3
5

5
0

0
1

,1
4

2

C
H

W
0

6
9

L
a

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 -

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
1

6
7

0
0

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

A
d

u
lt

s
 

61



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

C
H

W
0

0
1

 1
4

/1
5

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 G

ro
w

th
. 

 C
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
 f

o
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 

u
s
e

rs

6
0

0
0

0
2

9
,2

1
6

C
H

W
0

0
2

 1
4

/1
5

H
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s
 [

1
0

0
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 &

 a
n

ti
c

ip
a

te
d

 B
&

B
 H

B
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

).
  

S
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

 M
T

F
S

 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t

o
 a

ri
s
e

 f
ro

m
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 f

o
r 

B
&

B
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 d
id

 n
o

t 
a

c
tu

a
lly

 

m
a

te
ri
a

lis
e

.

1
5

0
0

0
2

,8
7

3

C
H

W
0

0
3

 1
4

/1
5

H
a

tc
h

 E
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 -

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 a

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
o

d
e

l.
  

O
n

g
o

in
g

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 f
in

a
lis

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
.

1
1

7
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

, 
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

3
,2

2
4

-1
8

0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

U
n

a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 S
a

v
in

g
s

R
E

S
0

4
1

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

( 
H

R
D

) 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

. 
P

o
s
t 

d
e

le
ti
o

n
.

6
5

0
0

6
2

2

R
E

S
0

4
2

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 p

o
s

ts
. 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

 p
o

s
ts

.
7

5
0

0
6

2
2

R
E

S
0

6
9

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

 F
o

rm
a

l 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

s
. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

.
7

0
0

0
2

0
6

R
E

S
0

8
3

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 m
o

v
e

s
 t

o
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

W
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 (

D
W

P
).

 R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t

o
 U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

0
1

2
5

2
0

1
,2

2
7

R
E

S
0

8
4

W
it

h
d

ra
w

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 R

a
te

 R
e

li
e

f 
fr

o
m

 C
h

a
ri

ty
 S

h
o

p
s

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 a
n

d
 e

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

5
0

0

0
5

0

R
E

S
0

6
4

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

 o
f 

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

E
x
p

a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

p
a

rt
n

e
r.

 

2
0

0
0

0
-1

0
0

R
e

-p
ro

fi
le

d
 I

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

/ 
S

a
v

in
g

s

R
E

S
0

1
9

D
W

P
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 G

ra
n

t.
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

-2
5

0
-2

5
0

5
0

0
1

,6
6

0

R
E

S
0

2
0

L
o

s
s

 o
f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 O
v

e
rp

a
y

m
e

n
ts

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
tr

e
a

m
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

-2
0

0
-1

2
0

2
1

0
6

3
0

R
E

S
0

7
8

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

4
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

1
4

0
-1

4
0

0
3

,1
1

7

N
e

w
 G

ro
w

th

R
E

S
 0

0
1

 1
4

/1
5

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
P

S
N

)
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

,3
3

2

R
E

S
 0

0
2

 1
4

/1
5

C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
c
o

s
ts

5
0

0
0

5
,4

2
9

S
u

b
s

ti
tu

te
 S

a
v

in
g

R
E

S
 0

0
3

 1
4

/1
5

T
o

 d
e

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 

o
f 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
-2

8
0

0
0

2
8

0

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

2
0

-3
8

5
7

3
0

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

T
e

c
h

 0
0

1
C

a
p

it
a

l 
fi

n
a

n
c

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

in
c

o
m

e
9

1
0

7
0

0
0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

2

N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s

 b
o

n
u

s
 -

 T
o

p
 s

lic
e

 o
f 

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 L

E
P

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 (

C
S

R
) 

2
0

1
3

0
1

6
0

0
1

8
0

-2
,8

6
7

T
e

c
h

 0
0

3
S

S
C

F
 G

ra
n

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 G
re

a
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

G
L

A
) 

- 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

.
6

2
0

0
6

2

T
e

c
h

 0
0

5
P

C
T

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 v
ia

 s
2

5
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 C
C

G
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 v

ia
 s

2
5

6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
-2

3
3

0
0

 -
 

T
e

c
h

 0
0

7

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t.

 N
e

w
 g

ra
n

t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
L

E
A

) 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 f
o

rm
u

la
 G

ra
n

t
-1

,5
0

0
5

0
0

2
0

0
-2

,5
0

0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

1
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 F

re
e

z
e

 G
ra

n
t

-1
0

5
5

-1
0

5
5

2
1

1
0

0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

2
 1

4
/1

5
F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 b
u

d
g

e
t

1
0

0
0

0
0

5
2

,1
0

0

62



It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

0
1

5
,6

9
3

1
4

,2
3

6

T
e

c
h

 0
0

3
 1

4
/1

5

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
b

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.1

%
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 

y
e

a
rs

-1
5

1
9

-1
0

0
-1

0
0

9
3

,0
3

9

T
e

c
h

 0
0

4
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
-6

8
1

6
8

1
0

-1
,0

4
5

T
e

c
h

 0
0

5
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
t 

0
%

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
1

8
6

1
1

8
6

1
1

8
6

1
0

T
e

c
h

 0
0

6
 1

4
/1

5

T
e

c
h

 0
1

8
B

u
d

g
e

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c

y
-1

,8
2

9
0

0
1

,1
7

1

T
e

c
h

 0
1

9
C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c

y
 f

o
r 

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s

u
re

s
-2

,0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

T
e

c
h

 0
2

5
In

fl
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 g

o
o

d
s

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 2
%

 t
o

 1
.3

%
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

.
-6

0
0

-6
0

0
-6

0
0

 -
 

T
e

c
h

 0
2

9
T

e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

. 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 t
e

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
.

1
5

1
4

6
-1

6
 -

 

T
o

ta
l 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
-5

,4
3

3
4

,6
3

3
3

,6
3

5

T
O

T
A

L
 A

D
J

U
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

-2
4

3
,7

8
8

4
,3

7
6

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 G
A

P
-2

4
1

9
,4

8
1

1
8

,6
1

2

63



64

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  

4

M
T

F
S

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 –

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
a

p
it

a
l 
a
n

d
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
T

e
c
h

 0
0
1

C
a

p
it

a
l 
fi

n
a

n
c

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

1
6
7

3
1
0

8
4
1

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
a
n

d
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

1
6
7

3
1
0

8
4
1

G
ra

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s

T
e

c
h

 0
0
2

N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

o
n

u
s

 -
 T

o
p
 s

lic
e

 o
f 
N

e
w

 H
o
m

e
s
 B

o
n
u

s
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 L

E
P

 a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 

in
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 S

p
e
n

d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

C
S

R
) 

2
0

1
3

-5
9
1

1
,0

7
5

-3
4
5

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
3

S
S

C
F

 G
ra

n
t 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 G
L

A
 -

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

. 
G

ra
n
t 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

u
n

ri
n

g
fe

n
c
e

d
6
2

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
7

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t.

 N
e
w

 g
ra

n
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

(L
E

A
) 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 f
o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t

-5
0
0

1
,5

0
0

2
0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
1

 1
4
/1

5
C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 F

re
e
z
e

 G
ra

n
t

-1
,0

5
5

-1
,0

5
5

2
,1

1
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
2

 1
4
/1

5
F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t 

re
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

3
 b

u
d
g

e
t

1
,0

0
0

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
G

ra
n

t 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

-1
,0

8
4

1
,5

2
0

1
,9

6
5

O
th

e
r 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

T
e

c
h

 0
1
2

F
re

e
d

o
m

 P
a

s
s

 L
e

v
y
 i

n
c

re
a
s

e
. 

C
o
s
t 

o
f 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 p
a

s
s
e

s
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 t
o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 b
y
 

T
fL

3
5
0

3
6
0

3
7
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
3

 

1
4
/1

5

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
b
a

s
e

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

0
.1

%
 i
n

 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

-1
,5

1
9

-1
0
0

-1
0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
4

 

1
4
/1

5
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n
d

-6
8
1

6
8
1

0
N

/A
 -

 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
0
5

 

1
4
/1

5
C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
t 
0
%

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5
, 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

1
,8

6
1

1
,8

6
1

1
,8

6
1

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

C
a

p
it

a
li
s
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
/r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

y

T
e

c
h

 0
1
4

R
e

d
u

c
e
 r

e
li
a
n

c
e
 o

n
 c

a
p

it
a

li
s
a

ti
o

n
1
4

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

M
is

c
e
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s

T
e

c
h

 0
1
7

B
a

la
n

c
e
 o

n
 S

S
C

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 -

 n
e

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 n

o
n

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
fu

n
d

. 
C

o
s
t 

to
 

g
e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 o

f 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 H

R
A

.
1
5
0

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
1
8

B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

0
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
1
9

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s

u
re

s
-2

,0
0
0

0
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
0

S
a

v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 f
o

rm
u

la
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

n
 f

re
e
d

o
m

 p
a

s
s

e
s

 -
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

c
o

u
n

c
il
s
 T

E
C

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 R
e

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

s
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
s
 g

iv
in

g
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
o

s
ts

-1
0
8

-8
1

-8
1

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
2

R
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

-1
,0

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
O

th
e

r 
T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

-2
,9

3
3

5
,7

2
1

5
,0

5
0

P
a

y
 a

n
d

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

T
e

c
h

 0
2
3

P
a

y
 A

w
a

rd
 @

 1
%

 2
0

1
3

-1
4
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
4

-1
5
, 

th
e

n
 2

%
 p

a
9
5
0

1
,8

5
0

1
,8

5
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
4

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r'
s

 P
e

n
s

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 @
 0

.5
%

 p
.a

.
4
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
5

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 @

 1
.3

%
 p

.a
.

1
,2

1
0

1
,2

1
0

1
,2

1
0

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
P

a
y
 a

n
d

 P
ri

c
e

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

2
,5

6
0

3
,4

6
0

3
,4

6
0

C
R

O
S

S
 C

U
T

T
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
T

e
c
h

 0
2
8

M
o

b
il

e
 a

n
d

 F
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 -
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s

ts
2
4

0
0

A
g

re
e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
e

c
h

 0
2
9

T
e

rm
s

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
. 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

.
-1

6
9

-9
4

-1
6

N
/A

 -
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
t

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

65



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  

4

M
T

F
S

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 –

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
-1

4
5

-9
4

-1
6

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
-1

4
3

5
1
0
9
1
7

1
1
3
0
0

66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

'S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
F

 0
0

1
In

c
re

a
s

e
 i
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k

e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

(C
L

A
) 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti

n
g

 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
1

7
8

1
7

8
1

7
8

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
0

2
In

c
re

a
s

e
 i
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 D

is
a

b
il
it

ie
s

 (
C

W
D

) 
c

li
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 

in
 c

h
il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

8
2

8
2

8
2

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
0

3
In

c
re

a
s

e
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s

ts
 r

e
fl

e
c

ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 c
h

il
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

1
5

3
1

5
3

1
5

3
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
0

4
L

o
s

s
 o

f 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s

ti
c

e
 B

o
a

rd
 f

u
n

d
in

g
1

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
0

8
C

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

d
v
a

n
c

e
d

 P
ra

c
ti

ti
o

n
e

r 
S

o
c

ia
l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

7
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e

s

C
F

 0
1

2
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

s
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
, 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

w
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

-9
7

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
0

1
 

1
4

/1
5

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
1

2
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

. 
 G

ro
w

th
 o

f 
£

5
0

0
k
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

fo
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

.
5

0
0

0
0

N
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
F

 0
0

2
 

1
4

/1
5

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

3
0

0
0

0
N

e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,1

9
6

4
1

3
4

1
3

S
a

v
in

g
s

C
F

 0
1

7
C

o
n

s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 d
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

1
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
p

o
s

t 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
-1

4
8

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
1

8
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 S
c

h
o

o
l 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 
-5

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
1

9
R

e
c

o
n

fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

a
rl

y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 F

ir
s

t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-1

5
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
2

0
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
ll
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

n
fi
g

u
re

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
o

ff
e

r
-2

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
2

1
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 I
I 
- 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 

T
ra

v
e

l 
T

ra
in

in
g

-4
5

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
2

2
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 I
II
 -

 f
u

ll
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
in

g
 

o
f 

s
o

m
e

 r
o

u
te

s
-5

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A
Y

e
s

C
F

 0
2

3
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c

h
o

lo
g

y
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
-9

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
2

4
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s

e
m

i 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
c

lo
s

u
re

 o
f 

H
o

n
e

y
p

o
t 

L
a

n
e

-4
1

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s

C
F

 0
2

5
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c

e
m

e
n

ts
2

3
0

0
0

U
n

a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
2

6
S

a
v
in

g
s

 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s

, 
p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
d

ru
g

s
 &

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a

n
d

 c
li
n

ic
 i
n

 a
 b

o
x

-2
5

5
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
N

/A

C
F

 0
2

7
R

e
c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
R

e
s

p
it

e
 C

a
re

 f
o

r 
C

W
D

 
-1

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

C
F

 0
2

8
C

o
n

s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
u

n
c

ti
o

n
s

 -
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 s

ta
ff

in
g

-5
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-1
,7

6
8

0
0

N
e

t 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 &
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
-5

7
2

4
1

3
4

1
3

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

67



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
&

E
0
0
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
P

R
S

) 
- 

V
e
h

ic
le

 e
a
rl

y
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

 p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
-2

9
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
2

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 g
ro

w
th

-1
6
3

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
3

P
a
rk

in
g

 r
e
v
ie

w
 -

 2
0
 m

in
u
te

 f
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

-2
6
1

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e
d

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
5

C
C

T
V

 c
a
m

e
ra

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 d

e
c
li
n

e

0
7

0
5

6
A

g
re

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e
d

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
6

C
R

C
 (

C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t)
/E

A
 (

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
) 

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

C
R

C
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

-8
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 g
ro

w
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e
d

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
0
8

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
W

L
W

A
) 

L
e
v
y
 

6
8

9
6

7
7

7
0

8
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
1

 

1
4
/1

5

R
e
c
y
c
li
n

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a
m

 -
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
, 
fr

ie
n
d

ly
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 a

 f
u
lly

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

b
ra

n
d

e
d
 u

n
if
o
rm

, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 r

e
fu

s
e
 c

re
w

s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d

 s
tr

e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
. 
A

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 

th
re

e
 

p
lu

s
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 b
u
d

g
e
t 
fo

r 
p
u
b

lic
it
y
 e

tc
.-

 £
1
2

5
,0

0
0

. 
M

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 i
f 
th

e
y
 

c
a
n
 d

iv
e
rt

 1
,0

0
0

 t
o
n
n

e
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 i
n
to

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d

 b
e
n

e
fi
ts

. 
 

A
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 p
u
b

lic
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t
o
 b

o
o

s
t 
o
u
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

. 
A

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 c

a
n
 m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 5
0
%

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

, 
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
lf
 

fi
n
a
n

c
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g

 r
u
n
 i
f 
w

a
s
te

 i
s
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d
 f

ro
m

 l
a
n
d

fi
ll.

1
2

5
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
2

 

1
4
/1

5

S
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 B

e
a
t 

S
w

e
e
p

in
g

 -
 R

e
in

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 

v
is

ib
ili

ty
 w

e
e
k
e

n
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

 s
h
o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 l
it
te

ri
n
g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 R

a
y
n
e
rs

 L
a
n

e
, 

E
d
g
e

w
a
re

, 
S

o
u
th

 H
a
rr

o
w

 e
tc

) 
a
n
d

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 r

a
p
id

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
e
a
m

 a
t 

w
e
e
k
e

n
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
c
o
re

 f
o
r 

lit
te

r 
(N

I 
1
9
5

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

ip
p
e

d
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 d

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

w
e
e
k
e

n
d
 l
it
te

ri
n
g
. 
 W

e
e
k
e

n
d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 e

a
s
e

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 M

o
n
d

a
y
 

m
o
rn

in
g
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

a
tc

h
 u

p
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 s

o
 g

re
a
t.
  

1
5

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
3

 

1
4
/1

5

S
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 B

li
tz

 T
e
a
m

 -
 T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri

m
e
, 
d
e
ta

il 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
h
o
t 
s
p
o
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
.

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
o
rk

 

1
2

5
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
4

 

1
4
/1

5

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 (

N
C

) 
- 

R
e
s
to

c
k
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 a

n
d

 N
C

 a
p
p

a
re

l,
 r

e
-

e
n
g

a
g
e

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
. 
 I
n
it
ia

te
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
.

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 

re
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
o
rk

 

1
0

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

E
&

E
 0

0
5

 

1
4
/1

5

P
a
rk

s
/G

ro
u

n
d

s
 B

li
tz

 T
e
a
m

 -
 T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 a

n
d

 U
s
e
r 

G
ro

u
p

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

s
ig

n
a

l 
c
ri

m
e
, 
d
e
ta

il 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
t 
s
p
o
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
o
rk

.

1
2

5
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
6

 

1
4
/1

5

E
n

h
a
n

c
e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

E
n
g
a

g
e
 i
n
 C

ro
s
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
e
e
k
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 
e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
d

s
 i
n
 s

h
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 u
n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 c

o
n
v
e

rs
io

n
s
; 

a
n
d

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

te
p
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 i
n
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
-

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 r

e
g
im

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
c
ri

m
e
 a

n
d

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

n
o
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e
c
u

ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 

1
0

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
7

 

1
4
/1

5

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
tr

a
n

s
it

io
n

a
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
ro

le
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 -

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
c
h
a
n

g
e
 i
n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
, 
it
 i
s
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 r
e

ta
in

 s
o

m
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
ro

le
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

A
u

g
u

s
t 
2

0
1

4
 t
o

 

e
n
s
u

re
 t
h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 m
e
t.

1
3

0
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
3

7
7

4
7

7
6

4

S
a
v
in

g
s

E
&

E
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

o
d

e
l 
(P

R
IS

M
) 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

 T
o
w

a
rd

s
 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
2

5
-3

7
5

0

R
e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
1
2

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
-1

4
5

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
1
3

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 P
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
. 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o
 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
's

 a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

-2
4

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
1
6

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 -

 F
le

x
ib

le
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
u

m
a
b

le
s
 b

u
d

g
e
t

-5
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
1
9

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

m
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 a
lo

n
e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

7
5

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
2
0

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 s

ta
ff

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

fr
e
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s

1
3

5
0

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
2
3

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e
 a

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 s
e
c

u
re

 u
ti

li
ty

 c
o

s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

-1
2
2

-5
8

0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
N

/A
N

/A
Y

e
s

N
/A

E
&

E
0
2
5

U
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
re

m
is

e
s

 o
n

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 n
e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
. 

1
0

0
0

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

E
&

E
0
3
1

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
1

5
0

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
3
3

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 (

li
n

k
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

S
L

A
 w

it
h

 B
re

n
t 

tr
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
)

-1
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
3
9

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 m

a
x
im

is
a
ti

o
n

 -
 F

le
e
t 

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
: 

E
x
p

lo
re

 a
d

v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

P
R

S
 f

le
e
t

-2
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
4
0

R
e
tu

rn
in

g
 P

a
rk

s
 t

o
 O

p
e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

2
7

5
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
4
1

G
ra

s
s

 V
e
rg

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

-1
6
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
4
3

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

A
n

n
u

a
li
s
e
d

 h
o

u
rs

0
-8

1
0

R
e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
4
6

R
e
v
ie

w
 f

in
e
 t

u
rf

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
-2

9
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
0
5
0

 /
 

0
5

1

R
e
v
ie

w
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 o

p
e
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

d
o

g
 

w
a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

1
0

5
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
&

E
0
5
8

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 o
th

e
rs

-2
7
3

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

69



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
C

a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

E
&

E
 0

0
8

 

1
4
/1

5

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e
a
li
g

n
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
In

c
o

m
e
 r

e
-a

li
g

n
m

e
n

t,
  
n

o
 s

ta
ff

 

im
p

a
c
t)

B
a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

, 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 

tr
a
ff

ic
 o

ff
e
n
c
e

s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 r

e
c
o
v
e

re
d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n

 

th
e
 b

u
d

g
e
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
o
v
e

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 s

o
 f

a
r.

  
T

o
 p

ro
p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d

g
e
te

d
 

fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

e
d
. 
 

K
e
y
 r

is
k
s

:

1
. 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 

2
. 
T

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 i
n
c
le

m
e
n
t 
w

e
a
th

e
r,

 t
e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 

a
n
d

 l
e
g
a

l 
is

s
u
e
s
. 
 

3
. 
P

o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s

-7
0
0

0
0

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

0
9

 

1
4
/1

5
T

e
x
ti

le
s
 R

e
c
y
c
li
n

g
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d
 f

ro
m

 t
e
x
ti
le

s
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

-1
0

0
0

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
&

E
 0

1
0

 

1
4
/1

5

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n

tr
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e

-3
0
0

0
0

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-1
,0

8
6

-5
1
4

0

N
e
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-3
4
9

2
3

3
7

6
4

70



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d

u
lt

s

C
H

W
0
0
1

D
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 G
ro

w
th

. 
 C

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 

u
s
e
rs

3
,2

0
0

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

G
ro

w
th

 a
g
re

e
d
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
 /
 N

e
w

 

g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 (

H
G

F
)

C
H

W
0
0
4

H
o

m
e
le

s
s

n
e
s
s

 [
1
0
0

 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 &

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 B

&
B

 H
B

 c
h

a
n

g
e
s
).

  
S

a
v
in

g
s
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1

2
-1

3
 M

T
F

S
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
o
 a

ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 f
o
r 

B
&

B
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 m
a
te

ri
a
lis

e
.

-1
0
0

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
0
5

H
o

m
e
le

s
s

n
e
s
s

. 
 G

ro
w

th
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
h
o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
 

-5
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
0
6

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 i
n

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s

in
g

 (
P

S
L

) 
In

c
e
n

ti
v
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

la
n
d

lo
rd

s
 f

o
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 l
e
a
s
e

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

re
d
u

c
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 o
n
 B

&
B

 s
h
o
w

n
 a

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
lo

w
.

-2
8
9

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
N

/A

C
H

W
0
1
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 

w
e
lf

a
re

 a
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

-9
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
0
3

 

1
4
/1

5

H
a
tc

h
 E

n
d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 -

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 a

 s
e
lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e

l.
  
O

n
g
o

in
g
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 f
in

a
lis

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

 A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1

4
.

1
1

7
0

0

N
e
w

 g
ro

w
th

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
1
1

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 T

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 c
o

s
ts

-1
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e
s

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,2

3
8

2
,8

0
0

2
,5

0
0

S
a
v
in

g
s

A
d

u
lt

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
3

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
-1

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
1
5

W
e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ll
ia

n
c
e
 (

W
L

A
) 

J
o

in
t 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 A

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

C
re

d
it

io
n

 (
A

P
C

) 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
C

a
re

-1
0
0

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
1
7

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
. 

R
e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 g

ro
w

th
-1

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
8

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e
c
to

r 
F

u
n

d
in

g
-2

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
1
9

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
. 
 O

n
ly

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
m

p
le

x
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 

b
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

.

-3
,0

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 B

a
s
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
t 
p
la

c
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
c
a
re

.

1
,5

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
2
1

D
a
y
 C

a
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
-3

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
2

P
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

[c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
].

  
M

a
rk

e
t 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
e
a
d

in
g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
s
t.

-1
,0

0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
3

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

ta
ff

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
.

-3
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

71



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

C
H

W
0
2
4

S
h

a
re

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
/ 
o

r 
a
g

g
re

g
a
te

 

w
it

h
in

 C
o

u
n

c
il
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d

e
d
 t
h
e
s
e

s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
 

-1
0
4

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
2
5

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 o
f 

J
o

in
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 

in
te

n
d

e
d
 t
h
e
s
e

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 b

u
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 w
id

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 

c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

-9
3

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
2
8

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 -
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

-1
,3

2
4

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
2
9

S
e
c
u

re
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 P
C

T
/C

C
G

 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

5
0

0
0

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
3
2

M
e
a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e
ls

. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
.

-1
9
0

0
0

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
3
4

L
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6

9
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
3
5

L
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

7
3

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
H

G
F

)

C
H

W
0
3
7

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

s
 -

 P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s

in
g

 S
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

-2
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
3
8

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
. 
 S

a
v
in

g
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

-7
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
4
1

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 -

 c
a
s

h
 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e
s

. 
 U

s
e
d
 t
o
 f

re
e
 u

p
 H

R
A

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t
o
 h

o
u

s
e
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t.
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
ro

m
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d
 B

&
B

 e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

.

-4
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
4
7

E
m

p
ty

 H
o

m
e
s
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
. 
R

e
d
u

c
e
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a

ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
b
ri

n
g
in

g
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
.

-3
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re

C
H

W
0
4
8

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

-1
5

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
0

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 2
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

fi
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 p

ro
fi
t 

s
h
a
re

 a
n
d

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 u
s
e
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

7
0

-1
8

0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
5
1

L
ib

ra
ry

 V
o

lu
n

te
e
rs

. 
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

.
-4

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
5
3

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 -

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

e
n

d
e
r 

w
it

h
 

E
a
li
n

g
 &

 B
re

n
t

-4
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

Y
e
s

C
H

W
0
5
4

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
6

2
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
5

R
e
d

u
c
e
 A

d
u

lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 S
u

b
s
id

y
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 g

ra
n
t.

-5
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
6

R
e
d

u
c
e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 t

o
 h

a
rr

o
w

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

u
s
ic

ia
n

s
 

-1
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
7

S
h

a
re

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

6
3

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
H

W
0
5
8

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
li
s
a
ti

o
n

 H
a
tc

h
 E

n
d

 P
o

o
l,
 A

rt
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
, 
M

u
s
e
u

m
 &

 B
a
n

n
is

te
r 

s
ta

d
iu

m
. 
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
a
v
in

g
s
.

1
1

7
0

0
U

n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

C
H

W
0
6
2

D
e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

e
s
ti

v
a
ls

-4
8

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

C
H

W
0
6
8

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
u

b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

F
u
n
d

in
g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
v
e
n

u
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

-1
0
0

0
0

A
g
re

e
d

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3

Y
e
s

N
/A

Y
e
s

N
/A

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

72



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

C
a
te

g
o

ry

It
e
m

 N
o

2
0
1

4
-1

5
2
0
1

5
-1

6
2
0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e
c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

C
H

W
0
6
9

L
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
1

6
7

0
0

U
n
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
o

ta
l 
C

H
W

 S
a
v
in

g
s

-5
,2

9
6

-1
8

0

N
e
t 

C
H

W
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

-3
,0

5
8

2
,7

8
2

2
,5

0
0

73



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

IT
 /
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

 (
P

M
O

)

R
E

S
0

0
5

B
T

P
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

In
d

e
x

a
ti

o
n

. 
C

o
s
t 
o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
2

%
.

3
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
 0

0
1

 

1
4

/1
5

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 (

P
S

N
)

1
0

0
0

0

N
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
 0

0
2

 

1
4

/1
5

C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
c
o

s
ts

5
0

0
0

N
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

R
E

S
0

0
9

E
x

p
e

ri
a

n
 &

 L
IS

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 c
e

n
s
u

s
 d

a
ta

 i
n

to
 L

IS
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
 o

f 

E
x
p

e
ri

a
n

 p
ro

fi
le

s
.

2
2

-2
5

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

1
0

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 P

a
n

e
l.
  

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

.
-1

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

(H
R

D
)

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

1
4

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 W

e
s

t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 W

a
s

te
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

W
L

W
A

) 
S

L
A

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 P
a

y
ro

ll
. 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
L

A
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
s
 W

e
s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 W

a
s
te

 c
e

a
s
e

s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

1
5

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
N

/A
N

/A

R
E

S
0

1
6

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

le
c

to
ra

l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

. 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

-1
0

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0

1
7

F
in

a
n

c
e

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

t.
 O

n
e

 o
ff

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

-2
0

0
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

1
8

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 E

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 W

L
W

A
. 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
L

A
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
s
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a

s
te

 c
e

a
s
e

s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

2
7

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

R
E

S
0

1
9

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s

 (
D

W
P

) 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 G
ra

n
t.

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.

0
2

5
0

5
0

0

R
e

-p
ro

fi
le

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

2
0

L
o

s
s

 o
f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 O
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
tr

e
a

m
. 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
U

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
C

re
d

it
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

0
2

0
0

3
2

0

R
e

 p
ro

fi
le

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

2
3

P
u

b
li
c

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

  
G

ra
n

t 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
. 
E

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 P

F
I 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

4
3

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

2
4

D
W

P
 H

B
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
d

m
in

 G
ra

n
t

1
1

9
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
o

ta
l 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
6

4
2

5
8

2
0

S
a

v
in

g
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

R
E

S
0

2
7

U
s

e
 o

f 
A

rt
if

ic
ia

l 
In

te
ll
ig

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 d
iv

e
rt

 s
w

it
c

h
b

o
a

rd
 c

a
ll
s

. 
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
, 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

 w
it
h

 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

-6
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

2
9

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
s

h
if

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 r
o

ll
 o

u
t 

o
f 

M
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c

c
o

u
n

t.
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

e
 v

ia
 M

H
A

, 
w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 I
V

R

-6
0

-6
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

3
0

C
lo

s
e

 F
a

c
e

 t
o

 F
a

c
e

 (
F

2
F

) 
a

n
d

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 C

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 f
o

r 
P

u
b

li
c

 R
e

a
lm

 

E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
. 
O

v
e

r 
a

 3
 y

e
a

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 c
lo

s
e

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
in

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

fo
r 

P
u

b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 q
u

e
ri

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
ig

ra
te

 t
o

 I
n

te
rn

e
t 
c
o

n
ta

c
t.

-3
0

-7
0

-5
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

3
1

R
e

c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
 t
o

 s
e

lf
-s

e
rv

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 c

lo
s
e

 F
2

F
 (

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

) 

a
d

v
ic

e

-1
0

0
-1

9
0

-1
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

74



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

R
E

S
0

3
6

M
e

rg
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 T
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 T

e
a

m
, 

re
d

u
c

in
g

 s
ta

ff
in

g
. 
M

e
rg

in
g

 o
f 

tw
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

o
s
ts

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e

 s
in

g
le

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l 
(n

e
x
t 
s
a

v
in

g
).

 

-9
3

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

3
8

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
, 
R

e
s

e
a

rc
h

 &
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 C
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

M
o

d
e

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
ts

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 o

n
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 t
h

e
n

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

-9
7

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

4
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 -
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s

 a
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
p

ri
c

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 W
e

s
tc

o
.

-4
6

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
R

D

R
E

S
0

4
2

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 H
R

D
 p

o
s

ts
. 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

 p
o

s
ts

.
0

-7
5

0
U

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

4
5

P
ri

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

. 
L

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
p

ri
n

te
rs

 a
n

d
 p

h
o

c
o

p
ie

rs
 a

t 

lo
w

e
r 

c
o

s
t.

-1
0

0
0

0
A

g
re

e
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

4
6

C
e

s
s

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
x

te
rn

a
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
A

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 i
n

 j
o

u
rn

a
ls

 a
n

d
 p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
e

t 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 o

w
n

 s
it
e

-7
5

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3

Y
e

s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 A

N
T

I-
F

R
A

U
D

 T
E

A
M

R
E

S
0

4
7

P
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 A

c
t 

- 
p

u
rs

u
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
u

le
n

t 
g

a
in

s
 i
n

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 B

re
n

t,
 p

lu
s

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
. 
 

-1
9

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT

R
E

S
0

4
8

R
e

d
u

c
e

 c
o

-s
o

u
rc

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
u

d
it
.

-1
6

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

R
E

S
0

5
3

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 b

ro
k

e
r 

fe
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 i
n

-h
o

u
s

e
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 

in
c

o
m

e
 o

n
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
c

h
e

m
e

s

-3
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

5
8

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
D

e
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
s
t 

in
 2

0
1

3
.

-3
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

5
9

C
ro

s
s

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
la

im
s

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
in

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
la

im
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
y
 b

e
tt
e

r 
ri

s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

-7
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

6
0

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
in

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
la

im
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
y
 b

e
tt
e

r 
ri

s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

-1
0

0
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

L
E

G
A

L
 A

N
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

Le
g

a
l 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

R
E

S
0

6
4

E
x

p
a

n
s

io
n

 o
f 

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

E
x
p

a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

to
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

r.
 

1
0

0
0

0
U

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g

Y
e

s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

6
8

E
-c

a
n

v
a

s
s

 P
ro

je
c

t.
 R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 c

a
n

v
a

s
.

-2
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

R
E

S
0

7
2

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
o

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs
 F

e
e

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 T
a

rg
e

t.
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-

1
3

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 
a

c
tu

a
l 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
, 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

.

-1
0

0
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

R
E

S
0

7
3

F
in

a
n

c
e

 r
e

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

. 
 R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

 c
o

s
ts

.
-3

0
0

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

R
E

S
0

7
8

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

4
 F

T
E

 p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

0
-1

4
0

0
R

e
p

ro
fi
le

d
 s

a
v
in

g
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

8
0

S
ta

ff
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 D
W

P
 A

d
m

in
 g

ra
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

-4
8

0
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

75



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
4

M
T

F
S

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 –
 P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
a

te
g

o
ry

It
e

m
 N

o
2

0
1

4
-1

5
2

0
1

5
-1

6
2

0
1

6
-1

7
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
In

it
ia

l 
F

u
ll

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
Q

IA
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 M
T

F
S

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

R
E

S
0

8
1

C
o

n
c

e
s

s
io

n
a

ry
 T

ra
v
e

l 
- 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 (

T
F

L
) 

g
ra

n
t 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

. 
R

e
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

v
y
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
.

-1
0

2
0

0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

R
E

S
0

8
2

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

0
0

-4
0

A
g

re
e

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s

R
E

S
0

8
3

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 m
o

v
e

s
 t

o
 D

W
P

. 

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 t
o

 U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

.

0
0

-1
2

5
U

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

Y
e

s
Y

e
s

R
E

S
 0

0
3

 

1
4

/1
5

T
o

 d
e

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
t 
o

f 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

-2
8

0
0

0
S

u
b

s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
D

o
n

e
D

o
n

e
D

o
n

e
D

o
n

e

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

-1
,6

4
9

-5
3

5
-3

1
5

N
e

t 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

-1
,5

5
3

-1
1

0
5

0
5

76



Draft Public Health Funding 2014/15 APPENDIX 5

Mandatory Services

Sexual Health (incl Family Planning) 2,735,948

Health Checks 334,750

Supporting Child Health 687,820

3,758,518

Discretionary Services

Tobacco Control 228,500

Drug & Alcohol Misuse 2,175,156

Physical Activity 134,620

Other 495,873

3,034,149

Staffing & Support Costs

Staffing 1,121,496

Non-staffing 314,000

Overheads 270,525

1,706,021

New Investment 415,000

Contingency 312,500

Unallocated Grant 225,952

Total Expenditure 9,452,140

Funded by 

Department of Health Grant 9,146,000

MOPAC funding 56,140

Council funded 250,000

Total Income 9,452,140

77



78

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Appendix 6 
 
Schools Budget 2014-15 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is a ring fenced grant of which the 
majority is used to fund individual school budgets. It also funds certain central 
services provided by the local authority such as Early Years (private and 
voluntary sector nurseries) and fees for out of borough pupils at independent 
special schools. 
 
In March 2012 the DfE announced their intention to introduce a new school 
funding methodology with effect from April 2013. Schools budgets have been 
set for 2013-14 based on this new methodology which was reported to 
Cabinet on 13th December 2012. 
 
 
2. School Funding Reform 2014-15 
 
In 2014-15 the DSG will continue to be split into the following three blocks: 

• Schools Block 

• High Needs Block 

• Early Years Block 
 
The DfE issued the “2014-15 Revenue Funding Arrangements: Operational 
Information for Local Authorities” on 8th July 2013 to enable local authorities 
and their Schools Forums in planning the local implementation of the 
reformed funding system for 2014-15. 
 
The Formula Factors and changes since 2013-14 are shown at Table 1. At its 
meeting on 15th October 2013, Schools Forum agreed to retain the same 
factors for 2014-15 as used in 2013-14. 
 
Table 1 
 
Funding Formula Factors and changes since 2013-14 
 

Changes for 2014-15: Comment 

Pupil led funding (basic entitlement 
per pupil and other pupil led factors) 
Minimum level for pupil led funding 
set at 80 per cent 

No impact. Harrow already allocates 
over 90 per cent through these 
factors 

Age Weighted Values (Mandatory 
factor) 
Minimum AWPU values set at £2,000 
for primary and £3,000 for Key Stage 
3 and Key Stage 4 

No impact. Harrow exceeds these 
values 

Primary Prior Attainment Factor No impact. 

79



 2 

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile 
(EYFSP) Retained as prior attainment 
factor for primary schools 

Secondary Prior Attainment Factor 
Changed so that it now counts pupils 
achieving below Level 4 in Maths OR 
English instead of Maths AND 
English 

This has more than doubled the 
number of pupils counted in this 
calculation. This has increased the 
value of funding distributed through 
this factor by nearly £5m. It is 
proposed that the cash value per 
pupil should be reduced to fund this 
pressure. 

Deprivation (Mandatory) 
Factors retained. Can use Free 
School Meals (FSM) or Ever 6 FSM, 
and/or IDACI 

It is proposed to retain FSM. 

Scarcity Factor 
New for 2014-15 

At its meeting on 10th September 
2013 Schools Forum agreed that this 
factor is not relevant 

Looked After Children (LAC) 
Only one indicator rather than a 
choice of three. Any child who has 
spent a day or more in care 

No impact 

Pupil Mobility 
In 2014-15 this only applies to 
schools with more than 10% mobility 
and applies to pupils who were 
mobile in the last three years 

This has reduced the amount of 
funding distributed through this factor 
by just over £1m, affecting both 
sectors. It is proposed that the cash 
value per pupil should be increased to 
redistribute this reduction 

Lump Sum 
Maximum reduced to £175,000 and 
the value can be different for primary 
and secondary schools. Merging 
schools can keep 85% of two lump 
sums for the full financial year after 
amalgamation 

Harrow’s lump sum remains at 
£154,230. This will impact on one 
amalgamation which took place in 
Sept 2013. 

Schools with Falling Rolls 
Schools Forum can agree a top-slice 
of the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG). Fund applies to Academies 
and maintained schools where places 
will be required in 2 to 3 years and 
schools are rated by OfSTED as good 
or outstanding 

No fund at present, unlikely to be 
required in 2014-15 

De-delegation 
No change. De-delegation reviewed 
each year 

Currently only £31,270 for Schools 
Support has been de-delegated for 
Trade Union duties. 

Minimum Funding Guarantee 
Remains at -1.5% per pupil. LAs can 
cap gains under the formula to fund 
the MFG 

It is proposed that a cap of 1% is 
applied to gains, in order to fund 
those schools whose funding 
reduction is below 1.5%. In 2013-14 

80



 3 

the cap on gains was set at 0.5%. 

 
 
The main changes since 2013-14 relate to the Secondary Prior Attainment 
Factor and Pupil Mobility. A consultation was issued to all maintained school 
and academy school head teachers in October 2013. This consultation closed 
on 8th November 2013. 
 
The consultation included three proposals: 
 

• adjust the per pupil funding for the Secondary Prior Attainment Factor 
in order that a similar level of funding be distributed through this factor 
as in 2013-14 

• adjust the per pupil funding for the Pupil Mobility Factor in order that a 
similar level of funding be distributed through this factor as in 2013-14 

• cap gains on schools whose budgets increase between years in order 
to fund those schools whose funding reduction is below 1.5%. 

 
The level of adjustment and capping will not be known until the DSG 
allocation for the Schools Block is announced for 2014-15. This is likely to be 
mid-December 2013.  
 
All high schools responded to the consultation and were in agreement with the 
proposals. No response was received from the primary sector. 
 
 
3. Setting Schools Budgets 2014-15 
 
The final 2014-15 Schools Block DSG is based on pupil numbers as recorded 
on October 2013 School Census, multiplied by a per pupil unit of funding. The 
per pupil unit of funding for 2014-15 remains the same as 2013-14 at 
£4,927.48. 
 
Based on provisional October 2013 census data, the forecast DSG for 2014-
15 for the Schools Block is £145m. It should be noted that at the time of 
writing (11th November 2013) not all of the academy high school census data 
had been returned to the LA from the DfE. Therefore, this calculation 
assumes that pupil numbers for 4 academy high schools remain the same as 
October 2012. However, this is unlikely and so the above figure can be 
indicative only. Under the current regulations the council continues to 
calculate the basis of the academy budgets through the Harrow Schools 
Funding Formula. The DfE then recoup the DSG in respect of the academy 
budgets and pass this funding onto academies directly.  
 
Schools will also receive the Pupil Premium in respect of pupils who have 
ever been eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) in the last six years. In 
2013/14 the rate for both eligible primary and secondary pupils is £900.  In 
2014/15 this increases to £1,300 per eligible primary pupil and £935 per 
eligible secondary pupil.  The pupil premium is a specific grant that the council 
has to passport onto schools. Schools can decide how they will use the 

81



 4 

additional funding to achieve improved outcomes for deprived children. On 1 
October 2013, Children’s Minister, Edward Timpson MP, announced a new 
‘pupil premium plus’ that will increase the funding for children in care at school 
to £1,900 per pupil from April 2014, an increase of £1,000 per pupil since 
2013-14. 
 
 
4. Central Services 
 
Services currently funded from centrally retained DSG are included in either 
the High Needs block or Early Years block where appropriate, with the 
remaining falling into the Schools Block. All the funding in the schools block 
has to be passed to schools apart from the following named exceptions which 
can still be retained but are frozen at 2012-13 levels: 
 

• Co-ordinated Admissions 

• Servicing of Schools Forum 
 
In addition, the following services will be delegated to schools: 
 

• Behaviour Support Services 

• Support to underperforming ethnic minority groups and bilingual 
learners 

• Trade Union Facilities Time 
 
Schools Forum has agreed to continue to de-delegate funding in respect of 
Trade Union Facilities Time. 
 
At its meeting in November 2013 Schools Forum will consider a request to 
create a ring fenced Growth Fund from the DSG in order to fund in year pupil 
growth. This is important for Harrow given the scale of additional classes 
identified through the Primary Expansion Programme. 
 

• Additional Class Funding 
 

Proposed to allocate £63,000 of revenue funding for each additional 
class to provide for staffing plus some equipment for the period 
September to March (this equates approximately to 7 months of the 
2014-15 reception per pupil funding). This will cover additional classes 
in both maintained and academy schools but not Free Schools. 

 
At this stage it is not proposed to allocate similar funding for the 
secondary sector. 

 

• Trigger Funding 
 

Proposed to provide additional funding where pupil numbers in the 
Secondary Sector on the January census exceed those recorded in the 
previous October, by 2%. The funding will be based on average per 
pupil funding, though it is proposed to cap this at £100,000. This will 

82



 5 

cover additional classes in both maintained and academy schools but 
not Free Schools. 

 
 
5. High Needs Block 
 
The high needs funding system has been designed to support a continuum of 
provision for pupils and students with special educational needs (SEN), 
learning difficulties and disabilities, from their early years to age 25. 
 
The following are funded from the High Needs Block: 
 

• Harrow Special Schools 

• Additional resourced provision in Harrow mainstream schools 

• Places in out of borough special schools and independent special 
schools 

• High Value Costed Statements in mainstream schools 

• Post-16 SEN expenditure including FE settings 

• SEN support services and support for inclusion 

• Alternative Provision including Pupil Referral Units and Education 
Other Than At School 

 
In 2013-14 high needs pupils are funded on a mixture of places and pupils, 
the “place-plus” approach. This will continue in 2014-15.  
 
There are continued concerns about the financial risks posed by the changes 
to the funding for SEN provision. The 2013-14 High Needs Block will form the 
basis of the 2014-15 baseline. The DfE have not confirmed how they will fund 
growth in the High Needs Block in future years. In guidance issued on 4th 
October 2013 the DfE state: 
 

“The total national high needs budget for the financial year 2014 to 
2015 has yet to be agreed and we are working on the expectation that 
resources will continue to be tight and increases in some allocations 
will need to be balanced by reductions in others”   

 
 
6. Early Years Block 
 

• 3 and 4 year old nursery entitlement 
 

Since 2004 all three and four year olds have been entitled to a free part 
time early education place. As in 2013-14 the funding for three and four 
year olds will be based on a per pupil amount of £4,320.96. Early years 
funding differs from main school funding because providers have to be 
funded for the pupil numbers that they actually have during the 
financial year, rather than on an earlier fixed data point. 

 
Therefore the allocation for the Early Years block will be updated in 
summer 2014 to reflect January 2014 Early Years Census data and 

83



 6 

then again at the end of the financial year to reflect January 2015 Early 
Years Census. 
 
Nursery settings are funded through the Early Years Single Funding 
Formula (EYSFF). In October 2013 Schools Forum agreed to a review 
of the EYSFF with a view to implementation of a revised formula from 
April 2015. 

 

• 2 year old nursery entitlement 
 

From September 2013 free entitlement became a statutory requirement 
for eligible two year olds. Local authorities’ allocations included a 
notional amount for statutory places and a notional amount for 
trajectory building, to be used to create places in preparation for 
provision of entitlement for 40% of two year olds from September 2014. 
In Harrow this totalled £2.304m as well as a capital allocation of £438k. 
 
The DfE is considering the most appropriate method for allocating 
funding to support the rise to 40% entitlement. 

 
 

84



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12 December 2013 

Subject: 

 

Draft Capital Programme 2014-15 to 2017-18 

Key Decision: Yes  

  

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance  

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari (Portfolio Holder for 
Finance) 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

Yes  
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
 
Appendix 1 – Proposed  Capital Programme 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out the proposed capital programme for 2014-15 to 2017-18 
for consultation. 

 

Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: approve the draft capital programme, as detailed 
within Appendix 1, for consultation, with the final version to be presented at 
the February meeting of Cabinet. 
 

Reason:  To enable the Council to have an approved capital programme for 
2014-15 to 2017-18 and to enable preparation work to be undertaken for 
future years. 
 

85



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Development of the Capital Programme 
 

1. This report sets out the Council’s proposals for Capital investment over 
the next four years.  These provide for a very substantial investment of £248m 
in infrastructure on General Fund and Housing Revenue Account services.   

2. The proposed capital programme has been prepared in the current 
climate of increased revenue pressures, reduced external funding from 
Central Government as well as current property market conditions which are 
still more difficult than they were at the start of the world economic crisis. This 
limits the scope to receive capital and s106 planning receipts. 

3. The existing capital programme is a one year detailed programme with 
an indicative envelope for the subsequent three years. In recognition of the 
need to plan ahead in relation to multi year programmes and to enable 
preparation work to be undertaken for future years’ projects the programme 
proposed covers four years. 
 
4. The approved Capital Strategy continues to provide a clear approach to 
Capital Programme development and requires the incorporation of the 
corporate priorities and alignment with the Council’s Asset Management Plans 
and Property Strategy, equalities and health and safety implications. The 
strategy thus results in a greater visibility and accountability of capital 
programme development. 
 
5. Service directorates were invited to bid for capital resources. A 
sophisticated ranking process was used in order to prioritise the capital bids 
received from departments against the available capital envelope. 
 
6. This ranking was then reviewed by a sub-group of the Capital Forum and 
the following amendments were made: 
 

• Council funding of £1.739m in respect of Social Care IT developments 
was reduced in anticipation of future govt grant announcements 

• A number of bids were scaled back to allow the overall programme to 
fit within budget. These were Street Lighting, highways, Leisure and 
libraries infrastructure, Parks buildings and corporate IT systems. 

• Two large items of capital were removed again to allow the overall 
programme to fit within budget (Replacement of Hatch End swimming 
pool and expenditure to develop the Harrow Arts Centre).   

This re-prioritisation was reviewed by the Corporate Strategy Board and lead 
members. 
 
7. As well as the pressures highlighted in the first paragraph, flexibility in 
the capital programme is also constrained by a number of factors: 

• Unavoidable spending requirements such as major repairs to the 
Council’s buildings and carriageway and footway resurfacing, 
and providing school places. 

86



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

• Restrictions in the way funding can be used e.g. ring fenced 
funding such as Transport for London and DfE grants for 
schools. 

• The availability of capital receipts 

• Limited capacity to fund borrowing. Although there are no 
specific limits to borrowing in order to fund capital expenditure, 
since the introduction of the prudential borrowing framework, 
Councils must however consider the revenue implications in the 
context of the overall revenue budget commitments in the 
medium term.  Proposals must be affordable and the revenue 
resources available to the Council have reduced and are 
anticipated to continue to do so in the medium term.   

 
8. The proposed capital programme includes provision in the following 
priority areas: 
 

• Cleaner: A borough where our streets are cleaned regularly and our parks 
and green spaces are places to enjoy. 

o Parks improvements 
o Green grid 
o Street trees 
o Parks buildings 
o Parks litter bins 
o Neighbourhood investment schemes 
o Flood defence 

 
• Safer: Work with police to make Harrow even safer 

o Improved street lighting 
o CCTV crime reduction cameras 

 
• Fairer: Harrow is a place where our hard working residents can bring up 
their families knowing they will have fair access to opportunity. 

o Primary and secondary school expansion programme 
o Disabled facilities grants 
o Renovation grants 
o Empty property grants and private sector initiatives  

 
 
• Other/Combination of priorities 

o Highways Improvements 
o Civic Centre modernisation and development 
o ICT infrastructure to facilitate a number of transformation projects, 

including mobile and flexible working 
o High priority major works to corporate buildings 
o Leisure and Libraries capital infrastructure 

 
The Summary Capital Programme is attached at Appendix 1.   
 

87



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

9. The gross value of the proposed General Fund programme is £61.7m for 
2014-15, with external funding of £45.4m and a net cost to the Council of 
£16.3m.   
 
 
Backlog Maintenance 

10. The Council has considerable backlog maintenance – the figures from 
the latest Asset Management Plan are as follows:  

• School buildings - £30m  
• Corporate, Education and Miscellaneous buildings - £11.3m 
• Highways – £150m 

 

The level of investment contained within this programme does not clear the 
full backlog. It should be noted that the Council cannot afford to fully address 
the backlog in the short-term, however, the Council will do at least what is 
necessary in order to comply with health and safety legislation. The 
programme does include projects which address some of the backlog and 
also the investment in the civic centre will free up buildings for disposal and 
hence remove some of the backlog maintenance requirement. 

Environment and Enterprise 

11. Despite the financial pressures the Council faces the proposed 
programme for Environment and Enterprise allows for a modest increase 
compared to 2013-14.  

12. This allocation allows for substantial highways works, to address some 
of the backlog, improvement to the ageing street lighting and drainage 
infrastructure. 

13. The programme also provides for investment in Parks improvements and 
Parks buildings and for the replacement of Parks litter bins. 

14. There is provision for a number of Carbon reduction schemes. Carbon 
reduction schemes result in savings in both energy costs and carbon costs. 

15. There is provision for a collaboration with GLA/TfL on a project to 
enhance the quality and safety of Harrow on the Hill station and bus station 
including provision of step free access. The Council contribution of £3.1m, 
mainly earmarked for 2017-18 but with early design costs in 2014/15, is aimed 
at (and conditional upon) levering in the significant investment required by 
GLA/TfL to deliver the project over a series of phases. 

 
Children’s Services 

16. Harrow is facing a significant pressure on places for both primary pupils 
and secondary pupils and also needs to expand its SEN provision. There is 
also a £30m maintenance backlog.  Provision for addressing the pupil place 
requirements in schools and commencing to address the maintenance 
backlog is included within the proposed programme.  

17. It is anticipated that the cost will be fully met from Government grant. 

18.  We have received grant or had funding confirmed by the DfE for £63m 
so far against the programme total expenditure of £73.7m.  It is anticipated 

88



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

that the balance will be met from future grant allocations of Basic Need and 
Capital Maintenance.  

 

Community, Health and Wellbeing 

19. The programme provides for a targeted programme of improvements to 
the Council’s leisure and library facilities. There will be ongoing contractual 
commitments around the replacement of Lifecycle gym equipment which will 
need to be included in future planning years. 

20. The Government’s reforms of Health and Social Care require significant 
investment in IT systems to support them. Provision for this has been 
included, with an assumption that 50% of the costs will be supported by grant. 
There is a further scheme not included in the draft programme which is still 
under consideration. Should the grant funding not be allocated as anticipated 
the schemes will be funded within overall available resources.   

21. Provision has been made for Disabled Facility Grants to provide 
adaptations for vulnerable residents. 

ICT Investment 

22. The Council outsourced the provision of IT services to Capita in 
November 2010.  The programme of work allows for improved disaster 
recovery, increased resilience, flexible working and a scaleable service. As 
part of this outsourcing there has been a significant capital investment in 
software and equipment. The capital investment under the contract has not 
progressed as rapidly as originally envisaged but is now anticipated to 
complete in 2013-14.   

23. The programme provides for further enhancement of systems and for 
refreshing the IT infrastructure and corporate systems. 
 

Capital Receipts 

24. The capital programme assumes a programme of property disposals that 
are expected to raise £12m in 2014-15, £12m in 2014-15 and thereafter £2m 
p.a. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

25. The HRA Capital Programme is detailed in a separate report to Cabinet 
elsewhere on this agenda. 

Capital Funding 

26. The capital programme is funded from a number of sources. These 
include: 
 

• External Funding of the order of £44m in 2014-15, primarily from the 
DfE and Transport for London; 
• Borrowing; 
• Capital receipts; 
• s106 planning agreements in relation to specific schemes; 

89



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

• Direct Revenue Financing (Housing Revenue Account). 
 
It is anticipated that the General Fund programme will be financed as follows: 

Table 1: New borrowing requirement 

General Fund Programme     
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  

£m £m £m £m 

Planned spending 61.7 46.9 38.4 36.0 

External funding (45.4) (27.1) (21.3) (19.6) 

Capital Receipts (12.0) (12.0) (2.0) (2.0) 

Net Prudential Borrowing 4.30 7.80 15.10 14.40 

 

27. The revenue implications of this new borrowing, in the context of the 
Council’s treasury management activity, are set out in the table below. The 
revenue implications are factored in to the revenue budget report for 2014-15 
to 2016-17 being considered by Cabinet elsewhere on this agenda. The table 
below shows for each year what the full year’s effect of that year’s capital 
programme and capital receipts are. The table only includes the revenue 
effects of the programme that is proposed and excludes the revenue 
implications of previous years’ capital programmes.  It also excludes the 
impact of other changes to funding the existing programme e.g. interest rate 
changes. 
 
Table 2: Capital Financing Implications of Capital Programme 

 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 
MRP  214 431 1,988 
Interest  201 422 1,192 
Total 0 415 853 3,180 

 

28. The table above reflects the impact of the 2014-15 to 2017-18 
programmes to each financial year. There is no MRP impact in 2014-15 as 
MRP in relation to expenditure in 2014-15 does not commence until 2015-16. 
The Council as at 28th November had cash balances of £148m and as such it 
is very likely that for 2014-15 any borrowing would be made internally (That is 
to say from our own cash balances rather than taking on an additional 
external loan). 
  
There is no new planned borrowing in respect of the HRA programme. This is 
because under HRA Reform, the HRA is allowed to keep all of its net income 
rather than transferring some to the Government. This income will allow the 
HRA to maintain its capital programme without the need for further borrowing. 
In addition, the HRA will be at its “borrowing cap” so cannot borrow any more. 
These issues are more fully explained in the HRA budget report to this 
meeting. 
 

29. It should be noted that the capital financing costs are based on a number 
of assumptions about the level of capital expenditure, level of capital receipts, 
timing of any borrowing, interest rates, and use of the minimum revenue 
provision. The revenue budget reflects the best estimate based on these 
assumptions.  

90



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

 
Harrow's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

30. Harrow's CIL came into effect on 1st October 2013 and enables the 
Council to levy a charge on certain types of new development to help fund 
improvements to local infrastructure such as schools, transport, green spaces, 
health and leisure facilities. Harrow’s CIL is an additional levy on top of the 
London Mayor’s existing Crossrail CIL. The Harrow CIL is underpinned by the 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which sets out the infrastructure required to 
enable investment and planned growth in the Borough. Against an 
infrastructure bill, estimated to be at least £150m, CIL is expected to account 
for circa £20-30m, depending upon the level development permitted and the 
ability of the development industry to bring new proposals forward. In this 
context, CIL is additional top-up funding, but is not the primary source of 
funding for infrastructure and, even with CIL funding, there will still remain a 
funding gap that requires choices and priorities to be made.  
 

31. To date, no firm arrangements have been made regarding the 
governance for spending CIL receipts. Based upon experience with tariffs 
previously, officers consider that the most transparent and appropriate means 
of managing infrastructure delivery in future, is through a single but expanded 
and dynamic IDP process that addresses the following requirements:  
 

• Long (10 year+) and short term (1-3 year) strategic infrastructure 
delivery programmes 

• A clear and transparent approval process for all infrastructure 
projects      

• Consultation with the community on infrastructure delivery (including 
the obligation to pass CIL to the local communities impacted by 
development) 

• Engagement with the development industry about priorities and 
capacity, including their potential role in assisting delivery 

• Effective monitoring of progress against the infrastructure plans and the 
effective implementation of the spatial vision for the borough set out in 
the adopted Local Plan  

 

32. Over the coming months, officers from Planning and Finance will work 
up options and approaches to the resolution of the many issues to do with the 
effective delivery of infrastructure in Harrow, and will engage members in 
these discussions before reporting back to Cabinet in Spring 2014. 
 
Harrow's Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 
 

33. The IDP identifies the types and quantum of social, physical and 
environmental infrastructure required to support development and growth 
within the Borough to 2026, and sets this out in a detailed delivery plan. In 
particular it: 
 

§ Provides a benchmark of existing infrastructure provision, identifying 
how well existing needs are met; 

§ Identifies what new infrastructure is being planned as well as future 
infrastructure requirements to support existing population change as 

91



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

well as the new housing and employment growth planned for through 
the Council's Spatial Strategy; 

§ Provides an indication of the potential costs and means of funding the 
required infrastructure through public funding, developer contribution 
and other sources; 

§ Establishes responsibilities for delivery of individual projects, when and 
where infrastructure will be provided, and provides a basis for 
collaborative and effective working between stakeholders. 

 
34. The effectiveness of the IDP is in capturing Harrow's future infrastructure 
improvements and requirements in one place. As such, the IDP represents 
the beginning of a long-term (10 year) capital works programme for the 
Council, providing an overarching framework for the consideration of a 
coordinated programme of delivery across all service areas and rational basis 
for the evaluation and prioritisation of individual project bids for capital 
investment.  
 
35. The proposed capital programme for 2014-15 – 2017-18 will deliver a 
number of the infrastructure improvements identified in the IDP. Going 
forward, closer alignment of the capital programme to the delivery against the 
IDP will significantly aid in Council's communication of a clear and coherent 
picture around its strategic investment choices and decisions. 
 
36. However, it is not intended that the IDP be a static document, rather it 
will be subject to periodic review and updated as necessary to take account of 
improvements already delivered, new population projections, changes in 
demands for different infrastructure provision, development completions and 
changes in service delivery and/or service funding. Such information will 
routinely be feed-in from the various service areas, enabling the IDP to 
provide a 'top-down' approach to Council's strategic decision-making about its 
future investment in capital improvements alongside other funding initiatives 
and property disposals. 
 
Governance Structure For Delivery Of The Programme 

37. The processes and procedures implemented surrounding the 
governance of the capital programme have continued to be developed.  All 
capital projects are now included in VERTO, the Council’s project 
management system.   
 
38. Governance of the Capital Programme in 2013-14 will continue to 
include monitoring and review by Capital Forum on a monthly basis, with 
reporting to Cabinet at the end of each quarter. 

 
 

Options considered  

39.  These are as detailed in paragraph 6. 
 

Legal Implications 

40. Included in the body of the report. 
 

92



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

Financial Implications 

41. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 
 

Performance Issues 

42. The capital programme proposed represents a significant investment by 
the Council in infrastructure.  This will have an impact on a range of 
performance indicators across the Council’s services. 
 
43. Monitoring of the approved programme, including Capital Forum, is 
ongoing and is essential for good financial management. As well as 
performing project assessments on completed projects it will be important to 
develop and track performance measures to ensure that the Council can 
evidence and demonstrate good value for money (VFM). 
 
44. Target for spend. It is proposed that a performance target is set of 90% 
of the approved budget for the programme being spent in 2014-15.  Having 
approved an investment programme it is important that the programme is then 
substantially delivered in the planned timeframe, in line with member priorities. 
 

Environmental Impact 

45. The Council adopted the climate change strategy in September 2009 
and set an annual target to reduce corporate and borough carbon emissions 
by 4% a year.  
 
46. Capital expenditure of this scale will have an environmental impact on 
the Council’s operations (and the wider borough). The investment carries the 
risk of increasing carbon emissions. Hence each proposed project is required 
to consider their respective carbon impacts and include measures to ensure 
that the above target is supported.  
 
47. Some of the projects will specifically support the strategy in terms of 
mitigation and adaptation. 
 
 

Risk Management Implications 

48. The individual schemes within the programme will either be incorporated 
within departmental registers or have individual registers. A significant 
consideration in developing the programme has been the risks arising from 
not keeping our infrastructure in good order.  Not doing so would lead to an 
increase in health and safety risks and additional costs in replacing assets 
when they deteriorate too much to repair. 
 

Equalities implications 

Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  Yes 
 
49. One of the aims of the Capital Strategy is to ensure the responsible 
allocation of funding in line with the Council’s priorities and legislative 
requirements such as equalities legislation. Equalities implications form part of 

93



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

the way that the projects are prioritised.  The officer’s initial views are that no 
protected group is adversely effected by the proposals.  A number of the 
projects proposed in the programme will require full Equality Impact 
Assessments before they commence. Following consultation the impact will 
be further reviewed before the programme is finalised. 
  
50. Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality 
duty in making their decisions. Consideration of the duties should precede the 
decision. It is important that Cabinet has regard to the statutory grounds in the 
light of all available material such as material in the press and letters from 
residents. The statutory grounds of the public sector equality duty are found at 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
The relevant protected characteristics are: 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender reassignment 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race, 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 

• Marriage and Civil partnership 
 
 
51. Consultation responses received on this draft programme will be taken 
into account in drafting the final EIA. 
 
 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
 

Name: Simon George……………. x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: …2 December 2013……….. 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Jessica Farmer…………… x  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 18 November 2013………….. 

   
 

94



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\6\6\AI00085661\$0h2fzrkx.doc 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Alex Dewsnap………………. x  Divisional Director 
  
Date: …30  November 2013……….. 

  Strategic 
Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Andrew Baker………………. x  Corporate Director 
  
Date: 12 November 2013………….. 

  (Environment & 
Enterprise) 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Steve Tingle Email: steve.tingle@harrow.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers: Capital Strategy – annex 2 to Capital 
Programme report to Cabinet 9 Feb 2012  
 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 
(for completion by Democratic 
Services staff only) 

  
YES/ NO / NOT APPLICABLE* 
*  Delete as appropriate.  

If No, set out why the decision is 
urgent with reference to 4b - Rule 
47 of the Constitution. 

 

95



96

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

F
lo

o
d
 D

e
fe

n
c
e
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

lim
a
te

 t
re

n
d
s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 i
n
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

e
v
e
re

 r
a
in

fa
ll 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 

b
o
th

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
v
e
, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
to

 i
n
v
e
s
t 
lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

 i
n
 

re
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 
a
n
 a

g
e
in

g
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

, 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
.

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

W
a
s
te

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

T
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 

w
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
s
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
t 
2
4
0
 

lit
re

 w
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
B

in
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
s
ti
c
 t
e
e
th

 w
h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 b

in
s
 

re
m

a
in

 o
n
 t
h
e
 h

o
is

t 
w

h
e
n
 l
if
te

d
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 w

e
a
k
e
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 a

g
e
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 b

in
s
 t
o
 n

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

W
it
h
 a

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
g
ro

s
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
o
v
e
r 

£
7
0
0
m

, 
th

e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 i
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
a
s
s
e
t,
 

w
it
h
 4

4
5
 l
a
n
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 k

m
 o

f 
n
o
n
-p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d
 

le
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 9

0
0
k
m

 o
f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s
. 
T

h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 i
s
 

th
e
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

s
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 

o
f 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
, 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
It
s
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

ff
e
c
ts

 e
v
e
ry

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t,
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 o

r 
p
a
s
s
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

5
,5

0
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

C
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 f
lo

o
d
 

d
e
fe

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
, 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 a

t 

n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 t
h
e
 

c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
fr

e
q
u
e
n
t 
h
ig

h
w

a
y
 f
lo

o
d
in

g
. 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

g
u
lli

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
0
k
m

 o
f 
b
e
lo

w
-g

ro
u
n
d
 

p
ip

e
d
 d

ra
in

s
, 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
3
0
’s

 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
’s

 s
u
b
u
rb

s
.

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
2
5

C
a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
/1

5
-1

7
/1

8
 -

 T
F

L
 L

o
c
a
l 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

in
c
l 
C

P
Z

)

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 L
o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 (

L
IP

) 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 -

 

2
0
1
7
/1

8
. 
T

fL
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
g
ra

n
t 
to

 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 L

IP
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

IP
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
,3

7
4

2
,0

7
4

3
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

1

97



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

P
a
rk

s
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e
r-

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 

u
n
d
e
r-

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
r-

u
s
e
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f
a
ilu

re
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 

w
a
te

r 
in

g
re

s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 a

s
b
e
s
to

s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

P
a
rk

s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

re
 a

n
 a

g
e
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
t 
th

a
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e
r-

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 

u
n
d
e
r-

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
d
e
r-

u
s
e
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
p
a
rk

s
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
it
s
 l
if
e
. 
T

h
is

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

a
fe

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
rs

. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 p

a
rk

s
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

S
tr

e
e
t 
T

re
e
s
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
re

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 

c
la

y
 s

o
il 

g
e
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 r

o
o
t 
z
o
n
e
 i
n
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
n
y
 t
re

e
s
 a

re
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 b

o
th

 

in
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
o
u
r 

tr
e
e
 s

to
c
k
 w

a
s
 

p
la

n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
 a

n
d
 t
re

e
s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

g
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 w

e
ll 

to
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
n
 u

rb
a
n
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 p

la
c
in

g
 o

u
r 

tr
e
e
 s

to
c
k
 i
n
to

 a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

.

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

S
tr

e
e
t 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 2

0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

H
A

M
P

),
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
t 
v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 h
e
lp

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
s
s
e
t 
a
g
e
, 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 s
e
t 
o
f 

w
e
ig

h
te

d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
c
o
re

s
.

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

C
C

T
V

 C
ri
m

e
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 1

4
/1

5
C

o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
m

e
ra

s
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
fo

r 
c
ri
m

e
, 
d
is

o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
o
 a

 l
e
s
s
e
r 

e
x
te

n
t,
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
.

5
7
5

5
7
5

0
0

0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

4
/1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

4
3
3

4
3
3

2
4
6

2
4
6

2
3
1

2
3
1

1
5
5

1
5
5

2

98



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

H
ig

h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
la

n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 1

4
/1

5
H

ig
h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
la

n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e
n
tr

e
).

 

T
h
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 h

ig
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 D

 (
lif

e
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
/o

r 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 r

is
k
 o

f 
im

m
in

e
n
t 
fa

ilu
re

) 
is

 o
v
e
r 

£
5
m

 f
o
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
iv

ic
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

to
c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
.

4
3
0

4
3
0

5
7
0

5
7
0

7
0
0

7
0
0

2
7
5

2
7
5

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 r

e
tr

o
fi
t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

S
c
h
o
o
ls

)
In

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
n
e
rg

y
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

a
rk

s
 L

it
te

r 
B

in
s
 2

0
1
4
 -

 

2
0
1
5

W
a
s
te

 b
in

s
 i
n
 P

a
rk

s
 a

re
 q

u
it
e
 a

g
e
d
, 
in

 v
e
ry

 p
o
o
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
in

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

, 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

 d
e
b
ri
s
 s

tr
e
w

n
 i
n
 p

a
rk

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
d
e
a
l 
s
iz

e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 1

6
5
 l
it
re

s
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
im

a
l 
p
ro

o
f,
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
ix

e
d
 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

x
. 
£
1
k
 e

a
c
h
. 
It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
4
0
0
 a

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

G
re

e
n
 G

ri
d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0
1
4
 -

 2
0
1
8

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

n
 u

m
b
re

lla
 f
o
r 

c
ro

s
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 m
u
lt
i 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

s
 

G
re

e
n
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
p
a
ti
a
l 
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
.

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

3
4
3

1
4
3

2
0
0

H
a
rr

o
w

 o
n
 H

ill
 S

ta
ti
o
n

C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 T

fL
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

te
p
 f
re

e
 p

la
tf
o
rm

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 o
n
 t
h
e
 H

ill
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
 s

ta
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
rs

 i
n
 £

2
2
m

 o
f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

b
y
 T

fL
.

1
0
0

1
0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

0
1
2
,0

0
0

1
2
,0

0
0

0
1
1
,0

0
0

8
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

E
a
c
h
 w

a
rd

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

q
u
a
l 
s
u
m

 w
h
ic

h
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
b
y
 w

a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

w
a
y
s
 o

n
 a

s
s
e
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

2
1
0

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 T
O

T
A

L
1
4
,3

4
0

3
,2

1
7

1
1
,1

2
3

1
5
,6

1
8

5
,2

1
7

1
0
,4

0
1

2
5
,7

3
3

1
5
,2

1
7

1
0
,5

1
6

2
4
,2

3
2

1
1
,2

1
7

1
3
,0

1
5

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

3

99



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
1
4
-1

6

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
1
2
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
. 
T

w
o
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 l
it
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 

b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 1

0
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 

B
a
s
ic

 N
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 B

a
s
ic

 N
e
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 E

F
A

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
a
d
lin

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
th

e
 T

B
N

P
-f

u
n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
.

1
3
,7

2
0

1
3
,7

2
0

0
7
,4

5
0

7
,4

5
0

0
0

0

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 

th
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
7
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
re

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

B
u
ild

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

E
F

A
. 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
, 
tw

o
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
m

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t
o
p
 u

p
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
if
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
F

o
u
r 

o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
w

 o
n
ly

 t
h
re

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

,

8
,3

7
0

8
,3

7
0

0
0

0
0

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
1
4
/1

6

T
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 y

e
t 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

p
e
a
k
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 b
e
fo

re
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
b
u
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 i
t 
w

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

3
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 s

im
p
le

r 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
. 
W

it
h
o
u
t 
s
c
o
p
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
£
2
.5

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

llo
w

e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
3
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
. 

3
0
0

3
0
0

0
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

0
3
,0

0
0

3
,0

0
0

0
1
,2

0
0

1
,2

0
0

0

 S
E

N
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

S
E

N
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
S

E
B

 b
id

s
 w

e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

T
B

N
P

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 n
o
w

 

lis
te

d
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

6
,6

0
0

6
,6

0
0

0
3
,6

0
0

3
,6

0
0

0
0

0

4

100



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 f
ilt

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 b

u
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 t
w

o
 T

B
N

P
 b

id
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
/n

e
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

id
s
, 
s
o
m

e
 b

a
s
ic

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

s
s
u
m

in
g
 a

 f
in

a
l 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
2
6
 f
o
rm

s
 o

f 
e
n
tr

y
, 
w

it
h
 8

5
%

 f
ilt

e
ri
n
g

9
,2

0
0

9
,2

0
0

0
4
,5

2
5

4
,5

2
5

0
5
0
0

5
0
0

0
5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

0

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

2
0
1
4
-1

8

F
o
u
r 

y
e
a
rs

 a
g
o
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
v
e
a
le

d
 a

n
 £

8
5
m

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 

o
n
 o

u
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
re

m
is

e
s
. 
S

in
c
e
 t
h
e
n
, 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 

o
f 
o
u
r 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 a

c
a
d
e
m

y
 

s
ta

tu
s
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

 b
e
in

g
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 

o
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

b
u
ild

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
b
a
c
k
lo

g
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d
s
 

to
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
ry

in
g
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0
1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0
1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0
1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0

B
u
lg

e
 C

la
s
s
e
s
 2

0
1
4
-1

8
 T

h
e
 p

u
p
il 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 r

a
p
id

ly
 i
n
 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r,

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

t 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 i
n
ta

k
e
 l
e
v
e
l.
 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 r

is
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

b
id

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 u
n
ti
l 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

, 
th

e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 'b

u
lg

e
 c

la
s
s
e
s
' i

n
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 w

h
e
re

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fo

rm
 

o
f 
e
n
tr

y
 a

re
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
n
 

p
a
s
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
b
e
in

g
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 

b
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
la

s
s
e
s
. 

1
5
0

1
5
0

0
1
5
0

1
5
0

0
1
5
0

1
5
0

0
0

S
c
h
o
o
l 
A

m
a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1
4
-1

6
H

a
rr

o
w

 h
a
s
 a

 p
o
lic

y
 t
o
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
te

 w
h
a
t 
w

a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 f
ir
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

id
d
le

 (
n
o
w

 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 i
n
fa

n
t 
a
n
d
 j
u
n
io

r)
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 o

n
e
 s

e
t 
o
f 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
. 
W

h
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
te

, 
it
 i
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 r
e
a
rr

a
n
g
e
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 i
te

m
 t
o
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 (

e
.g

. 
a
d
m

in
, 

re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
, 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
tc

).
 T

h
e
s
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

ix
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o
n
.

7
0
0

7
0
0

0
7
0
0

7
0
0

0
0

0

5

101



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
A

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 r

e
v
e
a
l 
th

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

r 
S

E
N

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
, 
it
 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 w

e
 c

a
n
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 

th
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

s
 u

s
 t
o
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d
 b

id
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 
T

h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
.

5
0

5
0

0
5
0

5
0

0
5
0

5
0

0
5
0

5
0

0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

 T
O

T
A

L
4
0
,3

9
0

4
0
,3

9
0

0
2
0
,7

7
5

2
0
,7

7
5

0
5
,0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

0
7
,5

5
0

7
,5

5
0

0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

L
e
is

u
re

 &
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 1

4
-

1
8

C
a
p
it
a
l 
to

 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 a

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 l
e
is

u
re

 

a
n
d
 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 
th

a
t 

fa
ilu

re
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

ill
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly

 

le
a
d
 t
o
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 c

lo
s
u
re

 i
f 
a
 m

a
jo

r 
fa

u
lt
 o

c
c
u
rs

 

a
n
d
 b

e
 a

 r
is

k
 t
o
 l
e
is

u
re

 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
' s

e
lf
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 k

io
s
k
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 b

y
 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
.

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
s
p
o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h
e
s
 a

t 
B

a
n
n
is

te
r 

S
ta

d
iu

m

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h
e
s
 l
o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 K
o
d
a
k
 

s
it
e
 a

t 
B

a
n
n
is

te
r 

S
ta

d
iu

m
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 s

1
0
6
 

fr
o
m

 K
o
d
a
k
 s

it
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0

R
e
fo

rm
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 T

h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

iln
o
t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

b
u
ild

 n
e
w

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
(s

) 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
ls

 t
o
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
.

2
5
0

1
2
5

1
2
5

5
7
5

2
8
8

2
8
7

4
7
5

2
3
8

2
3
7

1
2
5

6
3

6
2

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 

a
n
d
 a

d
a
p
t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

a
s
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

n
lin

e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
a
rk

e
tp

la
c
e
 '
M

y
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

P
u
rs

e
' t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

.

0
2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

0

6

102



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 M

o
d
e
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 N

3
 S

e
c
u
re

 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 

In
te

g
ra

ti
n
g
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 (

M
O

S
A

IC
 a

n
d
 J

a
d
e
) 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

 a
c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 (

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 o

r 
n
e
w

) 
to

 

a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

IT
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 2

4
/7

 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
c
a
re

 

2
5
0

1
2
5

1
2
5

5
0
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

5
0
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

5
0
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

C
a
re

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
s

T
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

In
fo

rm
a
l 
C

a
re

rs
 

a
n
d
 n

e
w

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 &

 A
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
-l
in

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 
 

A
n
 O

n
-l
in

e
 s

e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

1
0
0

5
0

5
0

1
0
0

5
0

5
0

1
0
0

5
0

5
0

0

M
o
s
a
ic

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 1

4
/1

5
 –

 A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

C
o
re

lo
g
ic

’s
 n

e
x
t 
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
, 
M

o
s
a
ic

, 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-i
. 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

re
e
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f,
 a

n
d
 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
, 
M

o
s
a
ic

. 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
tu

rn
s
.

2
5
0

2
5
0

0
0

0

E
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 g

ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 t
o
 2

0
1
7
/1

8

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 
£
8
0
0
k
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 4

 y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 t
o
 2

0
1
7
/1

8
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

£
2
0
0
k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

).
 £

1
5
0
k
 i
s
 

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

5
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 b
a
c
k
 

in
to

 u
s
e
 b

y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 r

e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 g

ra
n
ts

 t
o
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

(f
o
r 

u
p
 t
o
 7

0
%

 o
f 
re

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

) 
in

 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

fo
r 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 r

ig
h
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 B

 &
 B

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

£
5
0
k
 p

.a
. 
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

fo
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 B

 &
 B

 

c
o
s
t.

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

D
F

G
 1

4
/1

5
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 
fo

r 
o
w

n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
, 
R

S
L
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

te
n
a
n
ts

.

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

1
,5

0
0

5
1
0

9
9
0

R
e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
ts

 1
4
/1

5
T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

g
ra

n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7
0

7

103



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

Q
u
a
lit

y
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a

B
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 a

t 
M

ilm
a
n
s
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
im

s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
  
d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
-f

ri
e
n
d
ly

 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
te

ro
p
e
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

in
fo

rm
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 'f

o
rm

a
l' 

c
a
re

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 t
e
le

c
a
re

.

1
5
0

1
5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

5
0

In
-h

o
u
s
e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

 T
O

T
A

L
4
,1

7
0

1
,8

1
0

2
,3

6
0

3
,6

4
5

1
,0

9
8

2
,5

4
7

3
,5

4
5

1
,0

4
8

2
,4

9
7

0
2
,6

9
5

8
2
3

1
,8

7
2

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

IT
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
s
, 
S

A
P

 C
R

M
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
£
5
0
0
k
, 
1
6
-1

7
 E

x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 S

a
a
S

 

£
7
5
0
k
, 
S

h
a
re

p
o
in

t 
to

 S
a
a
S

 £
2
5
0
k
. 
E

v
e
ry

 Y
e
a
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 £

5
0
0
k
 

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

IT
 E

n
d
 U

s
e
r 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 R
e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

m
a
in

in
g
 d

e
s
k
to

p
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
in

 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 -

 £
1
2
5
k
 i
n
 1

4
-1

5
 t
h
e
n
 

ro
lli

n
g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 £
4
7
5
k
 p

a
.

1
2
5

1
2
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

4
7
5

IT
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 R

e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
: 
1
5
-1

6
 

W
A

N
 a

n
d
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
y
, 
1
6
-1

7
 L

A
N

0
1
,1

0
0

1
,1

0
0

1
,3

0
0

1
,3

0
0

0

IT
 B

T
P

 R
e
fr

e
s
h

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
h
a
rd

w
a
re

 f
o
r 

p
a
s
t 
B

T
P

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
s
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e
a
lis

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

a
re

 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
.

2
1
3

2
1
3

0
3
0
0

3
0
0

0

M
in

e
rv

a
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 C

o
s
ts

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

in
e
rv

a
 i
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 £

5
0
0
k
 o

n
 e

x
it
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 a

c
q
u
ir
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
t 
th

e
ir
 b

o
o
k
 v

a
lu

e
. 
C

o
s
ts

 o
f 

n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
T

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.

0
5
0
0

5
0
0

0
0

0
0

IT
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
T

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
iP

a
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

M
e
m

b
e
r'
s
 e

m
a
il 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

if
e
  
e
tc

. 

E
v
o
lv

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
rk

in
g
,,
 s

y
s
te

m
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 

s
e
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
b
ile

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
w

 

w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
.

7
5
0

7
5
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

8

104



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

B
id

s
 2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 t

o
 2

0
1

7
/
1

8

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
it

le
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

G
ro

s
s
 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

£
0
0
0

N
e
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

£
0
0
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5
2
0
1
7
/1

8
2
0
1
5
/1

6
2
0
1
6
/1

7

IT
 M

o
b
ile

 a
n
d
 F

le
x

M
o
b
ile

 a
n
d
 F

le
x
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

 

a
n
d
 p

a
p
e
rl
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

m
o
b
ile

 a
n
d
 f
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
. 
T

h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
. 
T

h
is

 

b
id

 i
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

o
s
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 u

s
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
w

o
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s

4
0
1

4
0
1

3
1
6

3
1
6

0
0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 T

O
T

A
L

2
,7

8
9

0
2
,7

8
9

3
,3

9
1

0
3
,3

9
1

4
,0

7
5

0
4
,0

7
5

1
,4

7
5

0
1
,4

7
5

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 B

ID
S

 T
O

T
A

L
6
1
,6

8
9

4
5
,4

1
7

1
6
,2

7
2

4
3
,4

2
9

2
7
,0

9
0

1
6
,3

3
9

3
8
,3

5
3

2
1
,2

6
5

1
7
,0

8
8

3
5
,9

5
2

1
9
,5

9
0

1
6
,3

6
2

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

H
R

A
 1

4
/1

5
-1

7
/1

8
T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 3

0
 y

e
a
r 

H
R

A
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 

2
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
. 
T

h
is

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 H

R
A

 i
s
 

in
 a

 s
o
u
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
lf
 f
in

a
n
c
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

s
tr

o
n
g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
o
th

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

to
c
k
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
 

n
e
w

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

to
c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

7
,5

2
7

7
,5

2
7

7
,8

2
7

7
,8

2
7

8
,4

1
2

8
,4

1
2

9
,1

3
9

9
,1

3
9

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
2
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

4
,4

0
0

4
,4

0
0

0
0

H
R

A
 T

O
T

A
L

9
,5

2
7

0
9
,5

2
7

1
2
,2

2
7

0
1
2
,2

2
7

8
,4

1
2

0
8
,4

1
2

9
,1

3
9

0
9
,1

3
9

T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

7
1
,2

1
6

4
5
,4

1
7

3
5
,3

2
6

6
7
,8

8
3

2
7
,0

9
0

4
0
,7

9
3

5
5
,1

7
7

2
1
,2

6
5

3
3
,9

1
2

5
4
,2

3
0

1
9
,5

9
0

3
4
,6

4
0

9

105



106

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	8 INFORMATION REPORT - Draft Revenue Budget 2014/15,  Medium Term Financial Strategy  2014/15 to 2016/17 and Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18
	December Cabinet Report - Budget and MTFS FINAL 261113
	Appendix 1 MTFS 2013-14 to 2016-17 Final
	Appendix 2 MTFS Detailed investment saving schedules FINAL
	Appendix 3 MTFS proposed changes to MTFS for member approval FINAL
	Appendix 4 Proposed MTFS
	Appendix 5 Draft Public Health Funding FINAL
	Appendix 6 School Budget 2014-15 FINAL
	Capital Programme Dec 2013 Report Cabinet Final
	Capital Bids Summary cabinet


